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ndependent Auditors Report

To the Members of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The rd of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2(B)(f)] below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(ii)

the Note 43 (v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 43 (vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company have neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based,on our examination which included test checks and in accordance with requirements of
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

the Implementation Guide on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books
of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting softwares
except the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level
to log any direct data changes for one accounting software used for maintaining the books of
accounts relating to purchases, payables and inventory management. Further, for the periods
where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for the respective accounting
softwares, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.;101248W/W-100022

T Kinger

artner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105003
Date: 18 June 2024 ICAlI UDIN:24105003BKFBOB5924
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(B)
(i) (b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in every three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year 2022-23. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company,
except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company:

Description
of property

Gross
carrying
value
(Rs. in

million)

Held in the
name of

Whether
promoter,
director or

their relative
or employee

Period held-
indicate
range,
where
appropriate

Reason
for not
being
held in
the
name of
the
Compan
y. Also
indicate
if in
dispute

1 hectare of
land at
Kudrekonda
State Forest,
Davangere
District,
Karnataka

M/s. Sarjan
Realities
Limited

No

07
2021

January

Title
deeds
are in the
process
of being
transferre
d in the
name of
the
Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(i) (a)

(b)

(i)

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

The inventory, has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in companies, firms,
limited liability partnership or any any other parties. The Company has not provided guarantee
or has granted loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during
the year. The company has provided security to a fellow subsidiary and has granted advances
in the nature of loans to employees during the year in respect of which the requisite information
is as below.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided security to a fellow subsidiary and provided advances in
the nature of loans to employees as below:

Particulars Advance in the nature of Security
loans (Rs. in millions)
(Rs. in millions)

Aggregate amount during the year-

— fellow subsidiary

- 505.62
— to employees 1.62 -
Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date-
— fellow subsidiary 505.62

— to employees 1.67 B

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of security provided to fellow subsidiary
and advances given in the nature of loans to employees provided during the year are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the schedule of repayment of advances in the nature of loans
given to employees (which as per the Company policy is interest free) is stipulated. The
repayment of the advances in the nature of loans has been regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of adyances in the nature of loans given.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii) (2)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no advance in the nature of loan granted falling due
during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh advance granted to settle the
overdues of existing advance in the nature of loans given to employees

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any advance in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, there are no loans, guarantees and security given by the Company in
respect of which provision of Section 185 of the Act are applicable. According to the information
and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the Company, in
respect of the security given by the Company against the loan taken by it's fellow subsidiary, in
our opinion the provision of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been
complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the goods sold
and services rendered by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
the Company did not have any dues on Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax and Service Tax or Cess or other statutory dues,
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of | Nature of | Amount Amount paid | Period to | Forum Remark
the the dues (Rs. in | under protest | which the | where s, if any
statute million) (Rs. in | amount dispute is
million) relates pending

Finance | Service 75.16 - April Customs Nil
Act, Tax 2007 - | Excise and
1994 Decembe | Service Tax

r2012 Appellete

Tribunal
1/
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Continued)
Finance Service 4.36 - October Commission | Nil
Act, Tax 2014 - | er of Central
1994 March Excise
2016 (Appeals)

(viii)

(ix) (@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(f)

) (a)

(b)

() (a)

(b)

()

(xii)

(xiii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of reaprds of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

()

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.;101248W/W-100022

Place: Mumbai Membership No.:
Date: 18 June 2024 ‘ ICAI UDIN:24105003BKFBOB5924
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Schloss Bangalore
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
providesreasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Tar ger

' ner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105003
Date: 18 June 2024 ICAI UDIN:24105003BKFBOB5924
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Rupees in Million)
Notes As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 3 11,993:37 11,613.64 11,581.12
Right-of-use assets 4 2,248.49 2,296.09 2,343.22
Capital work-in-proaress 3 234.58 63.10 32.98
Investment properties 6 1,688.93 1,694.15 1,699.35
Goodwill 5 757.20 757.20 757.20
Other intanaible assets 5 392.60 401.21 406.94
Financial assets
- Investments 7 0.19 0.19 0.19
- Other financial assets 8 309.37 140.71 150.77
Deferred tax assets (net) 31 - - -
Non-current tax assets (net) 10 74.68 36.50 21.63
Other non-current assets 9 191.97 101.73 29.70
Total non-current assets 17,891.38 17,104.52 17,023.10
Current assets
Inventaries 11 95.92 88.10 58.06
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 12 90.85 126.39 85.63
- Cash and cash equivalents 13 97.94 409.34 503.78
- Bz‘ink balances other than cash and cash 14 616.28 134,32 14.28
equivalents
- Other financial assets 8 831 6.10 5.23
Other current assets ) 69.82 55.71 55.45
Total current assets 979.12 819.96 722.43
TOTAL ASSETS 18,870.50 17,924.48 17,745.53
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 201,70 201.70 201.70
Other equity
-Equity component of compound financial instruments 16 (a) 603.09 506.71 506.71
-Reserves and surplus 16 (b) (1,053.66) (919.53) (669.21)
Total equity (248.87) (211.,12) 39.20
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Finandial liabilities
-Borrowinas 17 14,071.43 14,197.60 14,175.95
-Lease liabilities 4 1,824.15 1,749.23 1,676.19
-Other financial liabilities 20 59.62 49.87 43.02
Other non-current liabilities 21 9.57 17.06 25.36
Provisions 18 28.43 22.95 27.69
Total non-current liabilities 15,993.20 16,036.71 15,948.21
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
-Borrowinas 17 2,674.64 1,716.35 1,500.62
-Lease liabilities 4 - 0.39 197
-Trade pavables
(a) T:_)tal outstanding dues of micro and small 19 12,45 2439 21.08
enterprises
(b) Total outstandina dues other than (a) above 19 257.23 143.19 84.08
-Other financial liabilities 20 69.56 51.20 49.08
Other current liabilities 21 103.71 159.09 100.40
Provisions 18 8.58 4.28 0.89
Total current liabilities 3,126.17 2,098.89 1,758.12
Total liabilities 19,119.37 18,135.60 17,706.33
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 18,870.50 17,924.48 17,745.53
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above from an intearal part of the financial statement

As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

ger

ip Number : 105003

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 20

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492

A

avi Shankar
Director
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024

2

T

Anand Upadhyay
Company Secretary
Membership Number: A23622

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rupees in Million)
Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations 22 3,224.42 2,819.23
Other income 23 294.53 274.17
Total income 3,518.95 3,093.40
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 266.35 243.04
Employee benefit expenses 25 511.58 408.60
Finance costs 26 1,690.47 1,554.84
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 250.04 286.21
Other expenses 28 929.02 853.23
Total expenses 3,647.46 3,345.92
(Loss) before tax (128.51) (252.52)
Income tax expense
-Current tax 31 - #
-Deferred tax 31 - -
Total tax expense - -
(Loss) for the year (128.51) (252.52)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 39 (5.62) 2.20
Income tax relating to these items & 4
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,
net of tax (5.62) 2.20
Total comprehensive income income/(loss) for (134.13) (250.32)
the year
Earnings per share attributable to owners:
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 38 (3.65) (7.17)
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 38 (3.65) (7.17)
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above from an integral part of the financial statement

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492 W

hankar

Director
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024

Amand Upadhyay
Company Secretary
Membership Number: A23622

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024



SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of cash flows for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(Rupees in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
_March 31, 2024 March 31.2023
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax for the vear (128.51) (252.52)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 250.04 286.21
Finance costs 1,690.47 1,554.84
Net qain on disposal of propertv, plant and equipment (7.95) (2.40)
Net impairment losses/(reversal) on financial assets (3.42) (0.08)
Net foreian exchanae differences 0.38 (0.37)
Unwindina of discount on security deposits (0.22) 0.19)
Interest income (46.40) (23.57)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 1,754.39 1,561.92
Workina capital movements:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (7.82) (30.04)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 38.96 (40.68)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (9.27) (12.83)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (14.13) (0.27)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets (19.80) (8.47)
Increase/(decrease) in trade pavables 101.72 62.79
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities (31.80) 58.69
Increase/(decrease) in other non-current liabilities (7.49) (8.30)
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 1.75 (25.25)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 4.16 0.85
Cash generated from operations 1,810.67 1,558.40
Income taxes paid, net (36.41) (14.88)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 1,774.26 1,543.52
B. Cash flows from investina activities
Pavments for property, plant and equipments including intanaibles (783.35) (315.79)
Proceeds from sale of propertv. plant and equipment 7.93 2.41
Payments for other intanaibles assets (0.43) (2.94)
Bank deposits placed (880.29) (248.21)
Bank deposits matured 229.56 143.05
Interest received 44,65 23.39
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (1,381.93) (398.09)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 1,382.03 294.13
Repayments of borrowinas (518.45) (177.23)
Principal elements of lease payment > =
Finance costs paid towards lease liabilities (103.42) (99.16)
Finance costs paid other than on lease liabilities (1,463.89) (1,257.61)
Net cash flows generated from financinag activities (C) (703.73) (1,239.87)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash eauivalents (A+B+C) (311.40) (94.44)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the vear 409.34 503.78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 97.94 409.34
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statements:
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:
Cash on hand 0.99 1.03
Balance with banks
-in current account 91.88 38.32
-in fixed depaosit account with original maturity of less than 3 months 5.07 370.00
Total cash and cash equivalents as at year end 97.94 409.34
al i ion to the c
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Liabilities from Financing Activities
Particulars Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
Balance as at April 1, 2022 15,676.57 1,678.16 17,354.73
Principal liability Cashflows (net) 116.90 - 116.90
Interest payment {1,257.61) (99.16) (1,356.77)
Transaction cost amortisation 3.87 3.87
Finance Cost accrued during the period 1,374.21 170.62 1,544.83
Closing balance as at March 31, 2023 15,913.94 1,749.62 17,663.56
Balance as at March 31, 2023 15,913.94 1,749.62 17.663.56
Principal liability Cashflows (net) 863.58 2 863.58
Interest payment (1,463.89) (103.42) (1,567.31)
Interest accrued on ICD - -
Transaction cost amortisation 5 =
Gain on account of modification in the
terms of compound financial instruments (2628 (56.38)
Finance Cost accrued during the period 1,528.65 177.95 1,706.60
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 16,746.07 1,824.15 18,570.22

The notes referred to above from an intearal part of the financial statement

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
IN: U55209DL2019PTC347492

Ju”

(vi*Shankar
Director

Number : 105003 DIN: 07967035 DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024

Anand Upadhyay
Company Secretary
Membership Number: A23622

Place: Mumbai
Date : 18th June, 2024
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1 Company information
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited ("the Company”) an Indian subsidiary of Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited was incorporated on 20 March 2019 under the provisions of Companies

Act, 2013 and started its operations effective 17 October 2019 by acquiring Bangalore hotel undertaking of HLV Limited. The Company is in the hospitality industry and operates hotel under the brand name
of "THE LEELA".

2 Basis of p ion, Critical ing esti and judg ts, Material ting policies and Recent accounting pronouncements
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial statements,

Rounding of amounts :
All Amounts disdosed in the financial statements and noteshave been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirement of Schedule [1I, unless otherwise specified.

2.1  Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") as amended from time to time. The Company adopted to transition to Ind AS from 1st April, 2022 and hence,
this is the first year of transition, The finandial statements upto and for the year ended 31 March 2023 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards as notified under section 133 of the Act
("Previous GAAP) and other relevant provision of the Act and rules notified thereafter . The financial statements are prepared in Indian rupees in millions,

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 are the first financial statements of the Company prepared under Ind AS. A detail reconciliation on the impact of transition to Ind AS to the
previcusly reported financial position has affected the company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows, in Note 41.

(i) Historical Cost Convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following-

(a) certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent consideration is measured at fair value
(b)defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's board of directors on 18th June 2024,

2.2 Critical ing esti and jud,

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions, that affect:
the reported bafances of assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and accompanying disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
income and expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements pertain to:

— Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment: The Company has estimated useful life of each dass of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of
the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment as at the end of each reporting period. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.Refer Note 3 for further details.

— Impairment Testing: Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets that are subject to depreciation/ amortisation are tested for impairment periodically induding when events occur or
changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair
value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which indudes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used te calculate projected future

cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions. Refer Note 3 for further details. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually.

— Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences can be realised. The Company estimates deferred tax assets and
liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, induding management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets. Changes in these
estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Refer Note 31 for further details,

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case laws and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant
uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Refer Note 31 for further details.

- Defined Benefit Mlans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial
valuation involves making varicus assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These indude the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and the fair valua of any plan assets are deducted,

Refer Note 39 for further details.

- Leases: The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable pericd of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain
not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if
there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics, Refer Note 4 for further details.

- Fair value Measurement of Financial Instruments: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market 1s determined by using valuation techniques. This involves significant

Jjudgements in the selection of a method in making assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the Balance Shest date and in identifying the most appropriate estimate of fair value
when a wide range of fair value measurements are possible. Refer Note 32 for further details.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

- Contingent Liability: The management evaluates possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity. The estimates of outcome and financial effect are determined by the judgement of the management of the entity, supplemented by experience of
similar transactions and, in some cases, reports from independent experts. Refer Note 36 for further details.

-Impairment of financial assets: For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition
of the receivables, The expected credit loss allowance is an estimate based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in a provision matrix.

23  Going Concern

The Company has incurred a loss of Rs.134.13 millions during the year ended 31 March 2024, has accumulated losses of Rs.4.015 64 millions and negative net worth of Rs.248.87 millions at 31 March 2024
and as of that date, the Company s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs.2.147.05 millions.

The Company has assessed 1ts capital and [inancial resources, profitability and overall liquidity position, In developing the assumptions and estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the economic
conditions, the Company as at the date of approval of these financial statements hus used internal and external sources of information and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts of
assets.

In view of the above, along with financial support from its sharcholders. the Company believes that it will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due in near future and
accordingly. these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2.4  Current / Non-current dassification

All assets and liabilities are dassified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is dassified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
Current assets indude the current portion of non-current assets

All other assets are dassified as non-current.

24 Current / Non-current dassification (continued)

es
A liability is dassified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
Current liabilities indude current portion of non-current liabilities.

All other liabilities are dassified as non-current,

Operating cyde
Operating cyde is the time between the acquisition of assets for precessing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents,

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current — non-current dassification of assets and liabilities,

25 Material Accountina Policies
a) Foreian currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if
they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. A monetary item for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the entity's net investment in that foreign operaticn. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

(iii) Subsequent measurement
Foreign currency transactions subsequently are accounted using the exchange rates as at that date and difference, if any, between the exchange rates as at the subsequent date and the date of the balance
sheet is recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

bl)  Cashand cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

c) Earninas per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusting the bonus element for all the reported
periad arising on account of issue of equity shares on rights and including potential equity shares on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss)
after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive petential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, Qrdinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible
instrument are induded in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into.

d) Revenue recognition and other income

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of
the goads or service to the customer, Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, returns and discounts.

Income from operations-

Rooms, Food and Beverage & Banquets: : Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue indudes room revenue, food and beverage sale and
banquet services which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and banquet services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.

Other Allied services: In relation to laundry income, communication income, health dub income, airport transfers income and other allied services, the revenue has been recognised by reference to the
time of service rendered.

Membership Fees: Membership fee income majorly consists of membership fees received from the loyalty programme and Chamber membership fees. [n respect of performance obligations satisfied over
a peried of time, revenue is recognised at the allocated transaction price on a time-proportion basis,

Some contracts indude multiple performance obligations, such as sale of food and beverages and room revenue, These are considered as separate performance obligations as, the customer can benefit
from the good or service on its own and the good or services are distinct within the context of the contract. Where the contracts include multiple performance obligations, the transaction price will be
allocated to each performance obligation based on the stand-alene selling prices,
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

A contract asset viz. Unbilled revenue is recognized in respect of those performance obligations where the control of the goods has been transferred ta the buyer or services are provided to the customer,
and only the act of invaicing Is pending.

A contract liability is recognised where the customer has paid in advance, but the services are yet to be rendered by the Company or the payment exceeds the services rendered.

A deferred revenue is recognised for revenue where performance obligations under the sales contract are to be satisfied.

The company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the company dees not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Space and Shop Rentals
Rentals basically consists of rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for retails and office at the properties. Revenue is recognised over the tenure of the lease/service agreement on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease, except where the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation, and except where there is uncertainty of ultimate collection.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account amount outstanding using effective interest rate applicable.

Government Grants
Government grants/incentives that the company is entitled to on fulfillment of certain conditions, but are available to the Company only on completion of some other conditions, are recognised as income on
actual reciept of incentive/grants.

e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost which indudes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation {other than freehold land) and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost, Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of construction, induding duties and nan-refundable taxes, expenses directly related te bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for making them operational for their intended use, Initial estimate of costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located is also induded if there is an obligation to restore it

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss so s to expense the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight line method, as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets had
been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support, etc.

The useful lives have been determined as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the proj ant and equipment are as follows:
Useful life as per Schedule II (in years) Useful life as per Technical Assessment (in years
Buildings 60 years 60 years
Plant and machinery 15 years 10 years to 15 years
Plant and machinery - Windmill 25 years 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 8 years 8 years
Office equipments 5 years Mot Applicable
Computers 3 years Not Applicable
Data processing units 6 years Not Applicable
Vehides 6 years Not Applicable

Freehold land is not depreciated. The assets’ useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis. An
item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to revalue its property, plant and equipment recognised as of 1 April 2022 (transition date).

Capital work-in-progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment are not yet ready for their intended use and are carried at cost determined s aforesaid.

f Intanaible assets
Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost induding any directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful economic life and assessed for impairment, whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired, Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. The estimated useful life
used for amortising for intangible assets is as under:

Class of asset | Estimated useful life
Computer software 6 vears
Right to use (car park space) 60 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible

asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assat and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, when the asset is derecognised.
Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill attributable to the acquisition of Bangalore hotel undertaking of HLY Limited is, from the acquisition date, allocated to cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment [oss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of April 01, 2022 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

a) Investment properties
Investment properties, principally office buildings, are held for long-term rental vields and are not occupied by the Company. They are carried at cost. Investment properties are depreciated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Investment properties generally have useful lives of 60 years for building and land is not depreciated. The useful lives have been taken as per schedule I1. Investment property is
measured initially at its cost, induding related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when Tncurred. When part of an investment property is
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

h) Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation/depreciation and goodwill are reviewed for impairment periodically induding whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. [n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
meney and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasanable and consistent basis of allecation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allacated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the camrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cashgenerating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent that it eliminates the
impairment loss which has been recognised for the asset in pricr years.

il Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax
Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Pravision for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering

tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peried in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to sat off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

i) Emplovee benefits

Short term employee benefits

All emplayee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are dassified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits indude salary, wages and bonus, short term compensated
absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits (induding compensated absences) expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees is recognized as an expense during the period of rendering of service by the employee.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts,
The Company’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans

(Post-employment benefit)

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan ("the asset ceiling”).

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.

Other long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences beyond twelve months and utilise it in future service periods or received cash compensation on termination of
employment. The Company recards obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the emplayee renders services that increase this entilement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit method. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the liability is based on the market yields on Government securities as
at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of profit & loss.

k) Inventories
Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a weighted average basis) or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling

price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost indudes the fair value of consideration paid induding duties and

taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

n

m)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a binding present obligation. This may be either legal because it derives from a contract, legislation or other operation of law, or constructive because the
Company created velid expectations on the part of third parties by accepting certain responsibilities. To record such an obligation it must be probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and 2 reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the cbligation. The amount recognised as a provision and the indicated time range of the outflow of economic benefits are the best
estimate (most probable outcome) of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Non-
Current provisiens are discounted for giving the effect of time value of money.

Contingent liabilities are disdosed when there is a possible cbligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not whally within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made

A contingent asset is not recognised but discdosed in the financial statements where an inflow of ecanomic benefit is probable.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Financial instruments

(i) Classification

The company dassifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or |oss), and

» those to be measured at amortised cost.

The dassification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value. aains and losses will either be recorded in orofit or loss or other comorehensive income.

(ii) Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the company commits to purchase or sale the financial asset.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a finandial asset at its fair value (trade receivables is measured at transaction price) plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

-Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the group dassifies its debt instruments;

® Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is induded in Other Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
qgains/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

* Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises, Interest income from these financial
assets is Included in ather income.

-Equity instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent redassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive payments is established,

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCT are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible debentures denominated in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder during the tenure of the
instrument, when the number of shares te be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value. The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognised at the fair value of
a similar fiability that does not have en equity conversion option. The equity component is initially recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability companent. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts. Subsequent to initial
recegnition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not
remeasured subsequently. Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualified for indusion in the cost of an asset). On conversicn at maturity, the financial liability is
reclassified to equity and no gain or less is recognised,

Trade and other receivables
A trade receivable without a significant financing component is Initially measured at the transaction price.

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.
Classification & measurement of financial liabilities

Trade and other pavables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair velue, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. If payment is expected in one year ar less, they are classified
as current liabilities. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities,

Borrowings .
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and

the redemption value s recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.
Borrowings are dassified as non-current liabilities if the Company has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12 months after the statement of financial position date. If not,
they are presented under current borrowings.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Derecoanition of financial asset & financial liabilities

A financial asset (or, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecoanized when:

(i) The contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial assets expire, or

(il) The Company transfers the financial assets or its right to receive cash flow from the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

A financial liability (or, & part of financial liability) is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Gain or loss on derecognition
Gain or loss on derecognition of a financial asset or liability measured at amortised cost is recognized in the statement of profit and loss at the time of derecognition. Derecognition gainfloss on financial

assets other than equity instruments measured at FVOCI is recyded to profit or loss. Gain or loss on derecognition of equity instruments measured at FVOCI is never recyded to profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from Initial recognition of the receivables. The
expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in a provision matrix. For other financial assets (not being equity instruments or debt instruments
measured subsequenty at FVTPL) the expected credit losses are measured at the 12 month expected credit losses or an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition,

Offsetting of financial asset and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet where Company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settie the liability simultaneously.

n) Leases
i. Asalessee
On inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for consideration. The right to use the asset and the obligation under the lease to make payments are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,

Right of use assets

The right-of- use asset recognised at lease commencement includes the amount of lease liability recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement
of lease liabilities and are subject to impairment testing. Residual value is reassessed annually.

Lease Liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments indude fixed payments (induding ‘in-substance fixed’ payments) and
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable, lease payments in an optional renewal peried if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
aption and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease. 'In-substance fixed’ payments are payments that may, in form, contain
variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the |ease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is nat readily determinable.

The lease term indudes periods subject to extension options which the Company Is reasonably certain to exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is reasonably
certain that it will not exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include exercise price a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities s re-
measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the ‘in-substance fixed’ lease payments or as a result of a rent review or change in the relevant index or rate.

Variable lease
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets
The Company has opted not to apply the lease accounting model to leases of low-value assets or leases which have a lease term of 12 months or less and don't contain purchase option. Costs associated
with such leases are recognised as an expense on a straightline basis over the lease term.

Disclosure of lease liabilities and assets in balance sheet

ii. Asalessor
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

iii. Classification of lease

To dassify each lease the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case,
then the lease is a finance lease, if not, it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of
the asset.

o) Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes substantial peried of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.
Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation, Borrowing costs that
are not directly attributable to a qualifying asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest rate method.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

4 Leases (Rupees in Million)
This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company leases hotel premises, plant and
machinery and houses for employee accomodation. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 11 months to
36 years, but may have extension and termination options as described in (iii). The weighted average discount rate for
lease liabilities is 10.5 % p.a.

(i) The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Right-of-use assets
- Building 2,240.62 2,287.45 2,333.83
- Plant and machinery 7.87 8.63 9.39
2,248.49 2,296.09 2,343.22
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 | April 1, 2022
Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities - Current - 0.39 1.97
Lease liabilities - Non Current 1,824.15 1,749.23 1,676.19
1,824.15 1,749.62 1,678.15

Additions to right-of-use assets during the year Rs. 7.14 millions and (March 31,2023 - Rs. 7.33 millions) towards a

(ii) Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit and loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Notes For the year ended | For the year
March 31, 2024 ended
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 27
- Building 53.98 53.71
- Plant and machinery 0.76 0.76|
Interest expense (included in finance costs) 26 177.95 170.62,
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other 28 11.01] 8.71

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2024 was Rs. 114,43 millions (March 31, 2023 Rs. 107.87
millions)

(iii) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of residential accomodation leases across the Company.
These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only if agreed by both the Company and the lessor.
The termination option of the hotel premises leased by the Company held are exercisable only by the lessee,

Critical judgements in determining the lease

term:

The Company assesses at lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension and
termination options. The Company reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstances within its control and affects whether the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an option not previously included in its determination of the |ease term, or not to exercise an option
previously included in its determination of the lease term.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

5 Other intangible assets and goodwill (Rupees in Million)
Computer software| Right to access the Total Goodwill

parking space

Year ended March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at April 1, 2022 4,14 402.80 406.94 757.20
Additions 2.94 - 2.94 -
Disposals - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 7.08 402.80 409.87 757.20

Accumulated amortisation
As at April 1, 2022 - -
Charge for the year 1.65 7.00 8.65 =

Disposals

Closing accumulated amotisation as at March 31, 1.65 7.00 8.65 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 5.42 395.80 401.22 757.20
Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross block

As at April 1, 2023 7.08 402.80 409.87 757.20
Additions 0.43 = 0.43 -
Disposals - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 7.51 402.80 410.31 757.20
Accumulated amortisation

As at April 1, 2023 1.65 7.00 8.65 L
Charge for the year 2.03 7.02 8.05 &
Disposals - - - -
Closing accumulated amotisation as at March 31, 3.68 14.02 17.70 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 3.83 388.78 392.60 757.20

The Company has elected to use previous GAAP carrying value as deemed cost for intangible assets as at the transition date.

Goodwill is initially recognised based on the accounting policy for business combinations and is tested for impairment annually (for transition to Ind
AS - Goodwill is recognised at net carrying amount as per the previous GAAP as per the transitional exemptions as explained under note 41)

Goodwill and Other intangible assets are provided as collateral security against the term loans availed by the company (refer note 17)

Impairment testing
Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer's
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company tests goodwill for impairment at least annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, which arose on acquisition of the assets, is allocated to a cash
generating unit "CGU" representing the lowest level with the company at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
reporting purposes.The carrying value of the cash generating unit is the carrying value of the net assets of the entity.

The recoverable value in use of the CGU is determined on the basis of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of an asset or cash generating unit and from its disposal at the end of its useful life discounted to their present value
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset

The carrying amount of goodwill is Rs, 757.20 Mn (31 March 2023 - Rs. 757.20 Mn). The estimated value-in-use of this CGU is based
on the future cash flows using a 5% annual growth rate for periads subsequent to the forecast period of 5 years and a discount rate
of 10.71% p.a. An analysis of the sensitivity of the computation to a change in key parameters (EBITDA, discount rates and terminal
value), based on reasonable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of the CGU would
decrease below its carrying amount.

The outcome of the Company's goodwill impairment test did not result in any impairment of goodwill.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

6 Investment property (Rupees in Million)
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 1,699.35 1,699.35
Additions & g
Disposals A 3
Closing gross carrying amount 1,699.35 1,699.35
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 5.20 -
Charge for the year 5.22 5.20
Closing accumulated depreciation 10.42 5.20
Net carrying amount 1,688.93 1,694.15

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for

Rental income recognised by the Company was induded in 'Other income’ (see Note 23). Power and fuel, repairs and

maintenance expense, property taxes, included in ‘other expenses’ (see Note 28).

For the year ended

TOT UTe year

March 31, 2024 e
Rental income from operating leases 216.79 227.51
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income (72.46) (64.47)
Direct operating expenses from property that did not generate rental income (2.78) =
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 141.56 163.04
Depreciation 5.22 5.20
Profit from investment properties 136.34 157.84

(ii) Contractual obligations
See note 37 for disclosure of contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or for its
repairs, maintenance or enhancements.

(iii) Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. Lease income from
operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
payments have no variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate. Where considered necessary to reduce credit
risk, the Company may obtain bank guarantees for the term of the lease. Although the Company is exposed to changes in
the residual velue at the end of the current leases, the Company typically enters into new operating leases and therefore
will not immediately realise any reduction in residual value at the end of these leases.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment properties are as follows:

As at As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Within 1 year 169.65 132.72 159.11
Between 1 and 2 years 171.43 137.33 132.72
Between 2 and 3 years 185.36 132.02 137.33
Between 3 and 4 years 89.37 131.54 132.02
Between 4 and 5 years 3.45 57.63 131.54
Later than 5 years - 3.21 59.66
(iii) Fair value

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 01-Apr-22

Investment properties 2,852 2,408 2,275

Estimation of fair value

The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties at least annually. The best evidence of fair
value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the group
considers information from a variety of sources including:

1. Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, adjusted to reflect those differences

2. Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows

3. capitalised income projections based upon prioperty's estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived
from an analysis of market evidence.

The fair values of investment properties have been determined by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of
Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017. The main inputs used are the rental growth rates, expected
vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable transactions and industry data. All resulting fair
value estimates for investment properties are included in level 3.

(iv) Presenting cash flows
The Compan i ash outflows to acquire or construct investment property as investing and rental inflows as

operatini

) i e
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

7 _Investments

10

11

(Rupees in Million)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
April 1, 2022

_Non-current
Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)
(measured at FVTPL)

investments

Other financial assets

Non-current

Security deposits

18,600 (31 March 2023: 18,600, 1 April 2022: 18,600) 0.19 0.19 0.19
equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Green Infra
0.19 0.19 0.19
Aggregate amount of quoted investments = = -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - - -
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments 0.19 0.19 0.19
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of - - -
(Rupees in Millior)
As at As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022

Fixed depasit account with original maturity of more 281.15 110.09 127:55
Margin money deposits with original maturity of more 0.42 2.95 0.38
27.80 27.66 22.85
309.37 140.71 150.77

Total

*Fixed deposit of Rs. 272.23 million (31 March 2023 Rs. Nil, 01 April 2022 Rs. Nil) is restricted for withdrawal, out of
which Rs 2.55 million is against Bank guarantee and Rs 269.68 million is against term loans availed during the year.

**Marain Money of Rs. 0.42 Million for marain given for Bank quarantee (31 March 2023: Rs. 0.42 Million, 01 April 2022:

North C Wing

Inventofy wriften dewin during the year Rs. Nil (Previous year - Rs. Nil)

Western Exprese Hig!
Goregao
Mumba

nt df Invehtoriésispledged as security against the Company's borrowings (Refer Note 17)

Current
Security deposits 1.85 0.40 5.23
Other receivables 6.46 5.70 -
Total 8.31 6.10 5.23
Other assets (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Non-current
Capital advances 134.68 64.24 0.68
Prepaid expenses 7.60 5.96 3.40
Lease equalisation reserve 49.69 31.53 25.62
Total 191.97 101.73 29.70
Current
Balances with government authorities
- With GST authorities 19.06 18.14 18.44
Advance to employees 1.67 1.72 0.23
Advance to suppliers 11.93 6.06 5.24
Prepaid expenses 37.16 29.80 31.53
Total 69.82 55.71 55.45
Non-current tax assets (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of 74.68 36.50 21.63
provision of tax: nil)
Non current tax assets/(liabilities) 74.68 36.50 21.63
Movement of Non-current tax assets As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 36.50 21.63
Less: Current tax payable for the year - -
Add: Taxes paid/ (refund received) 38.17 14.88
Closing balance 74.68 36.50
Inventories (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023  April 1, 2022
Food and bew 71.62 47.86 19.90
Stores and ¢ 24.30 40.24 38.16
Total 141 Floor, “S\00™N 95.92 88.10 58.06
Gentral B Wing and \




12 _Trade receivables (Rupees in Million)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022

Trade receivables from contract with customers — billed 77.57 84.69 65.65
Trade receivables from contract with customers — 17.24 50.28 29.00
unbilled™

Trade receivables from contract with customers — 0.21 - 1.49
related parties

(Refer note 40)

Less: Loss allowance (4.17) (8.58) (10.50)
Total 90.85 126.39 85.63
Current portion 90.85 126.39 85.63
Break-up of security details

Trade receivables considered good - secured

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 95.02 134.97 96.14
Trade receivables which have significant increase in E - -
credit risk

Trade receivables — credit impaired - - -
Total 95.02 134.97 96.14
Loss allowance (4.17) (8.58) (10.50)
Total 90.85 126.39 85.63

(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on payment terms of 0 to 30 days.

(ii) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with
any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any
director is a partner, a director or a member except as disclosed in note 40

(iii}) For related party balances refer Note 40
(iv) The receivable is "unbilled" because the Company has not yet issued an invoice, however, the balance has been
included under trade receivable (as apposed to contract assets) because it is an unconditional right to consideration.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

12 Trade receivables (continued)
(Rupees in Million)
Ageing of trade receivables as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from the due date Total
Unbilled Not due Lessthan & | 6 months to 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More Than 3 years
months
Undisputed trade receivables &
considered good 17.24 = 77.62 0.16 = - ] 95.02
which have significant increase in credit risk =
credit impaired - - - - - - = -
Disputed trade receivables =
considered good - - - - - F* o 4
which have significant increase in credit risk - - 2 > = = # =
cregit impaired -
Total 17.24 = 77.62 0.16 = - e 95.02
Less: Loss allowance (4.17°
Net 90.85

Ageing of trade receivables as at March 31, 2023

Qut: ing for following periods from the due date Total
Unbilled Not due Less than 6 | 6 months to 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More Than 3 years

months
Undisputed trade receivables
considered good 50.28 - 82.85 1.84 - - = 134,97
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - E = -
credit impaired - & s 3 & i - H
Disputed trade receivables
considered qood - - - - = E " 5
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
credit impaired - = - & 2 . % 2
Total 50.28 - 82.85 1.84 - = - 134,97
Less: Loss allowance (B.58)
Net 126.39

Ageing of trade receivables as at April 1, 2022

] for periods from the due date Total
Unbilled Not due Less than 6 | 6 months to 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More Than 3 years
months

Undisputed trade receivables
considered good 29.00 = 64.63 2.51 - = - 96.14
which have significant increase in credit risk. = - - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -

Disputed trade receivables
considered good - - - - - - - -
which have significant increase in credit risk - - % = E E - 2
credit impaired - - - = 5 = - H

Total 29.00 - 64.63 251 - = = 96.14

Less: Loss allowance (10.50)

Net 85.64
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

13

14

Cash and cash equivalents (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 91.88 38.32 143,04
- in fixed deposit account with original maturity of less 5.07 370.00 360.00
than 3 months
Cash on hand 0.99 1.03 0.74
Total 97.94 409.34 503.78
Note: Cash and bank balances are denominated and held in Indian Rupees and the balance with banks mentioned above is of
unrestricted nature.
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Deposits with banks with original maturity more than 616.28 134,32 14.28
three months but less than twelve months
Total 616.28 134.32 14.28

Fixed deposit of Rs. 596.65 million (31 March 2023 Rs. Nil, 01 April 2022 Rs. Nil) is restricted for withdrawal, out of which Rs 505.62
million is against an overdraft facility availed by the Company's related party, Schloss Chanakya Private Limited. Rs 35.42 million is
against term loans facility availed during the year and Rs 55.60 is against letter of credit,
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

15 _Equity share capital (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Authorised
67,500,000 (April 1, 2022 - 67,500,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 675.00 675.00 675,00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
20,169,566 (April 1, 2022 - 20,169,566) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up 201.70 201.70 201.70
Total 201.70 201.70 201.70
(i) Movements in equity share capital
(a) Authorised Share capital
No. of shares Amount
Equity
As at April 1, 2022 6,75,00,000 675.00
Increase/(decrease) during the year - =
As at March 31, 2023 6,75,00,000 675.00
Increase/(decrease) during the vear s 2
As at March 31, 2024 6,75,00,000 675.00
(b) Issued, subscribed and paid up
No. of shares Amount

As at April 1, 2022 2,01,69,566 201.70
Changes in equity share capital = i
As at March 31, 2023 2,01,69,566 201.70
Chanages in equity share capital = &
As at March 31, 2024 2,01,69,566 201.70

Terms, riahts, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The
equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as dedared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not show of hands) are in proportion to

its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company.

(i) Shares of the company held by holding/ultimate holding company

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 2,01,69,565 2.01,69,565 2,01,69,565
BSREP III India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited, intermediate holding company 1 1 1
(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 2,01,69,565 2,01,69,565 2,01,69,565
Percentage of Holding 99.99% 99.99% 99.99%
(iv) Details of shareholding of promoters:
As at March 31, 2024
Name of the promoters Number of shares Percentage of Percentage of
total number of change during
shares the year
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited 2,01,69,565 99.99% -
BSREP III India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited 1 0.01% =
2,01,69,566 100.00% -
As at March 31, 2023
Name of the promoters Number of shares Percentage of Percentage of
total number of change during
shares the year
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited 2,01,69,565 99.99% d
BSREP 111 India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited 1 0.01% -
2,01,69,566 100.00% -
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As at April 1, 2022

Name of the promoters

Number of shares

Percentage of
total number of

Percentage of
change during

shares the year
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited 2,01,69,565 99.99% =
BSREP III India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited 1 0.01% =
2,01,69,566 100.00% =
(v) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash
Company has not issued any bonus shares, shares for consideration other than cash and neither bought back any shares from the date of incorporation,
16 (a)_Equity component of compound financial instruments (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Opening balance 506.71 506.71 506.71
Add: Gain on account of modification in the terms of compound financial instruments 96.38 = -
Total 603.09 506.71 506.71
For key terms of the instrument refer note 17D
16 (b)_Reserves and surplus (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Securities premium 1,691.94 1,691.94 1,691.94
Retained earnings (4,015.64) (3,881.51) (3,631.19)
Retained earnings - fair value as deemed cost 1,270.04 1,270.04 1,270.04
Total (1,053.66) (919.53) (669.21)
Securities premium
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 1,691.94 1,691.%4
Addition during the year - -
Closing balance 1,691.94 1,691.94
Retained earnings
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance (3,881,51) (3,631.19)
Net loss for the year (128.51) (252.52)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earninas
- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations, net of tax (5.62) 2.20
Closing balance (4,015.64) (3,881.51)
Retained earnings - fair value as deemed cost
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 1,270.04 1,270.04
Add: Additions E =
Closing balance 1,270.04 1,270.04

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Equity component of compound financial instrument

This represents the equity portion of compulsory convertible debentures issued to Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited, holding company. (Refer

Note 17 D).

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to shareholders.

Retained earnings - fair value as deemed cost

Retained earnings - fair value as deemed cost represents the change in fair value of property, plant and equipment on the date of transition as per deemed cost

exemption adopted by the Company. (Refer Note 41).
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

17 Borrowings (Rupees in Million}
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Non-current
Secured
Term Loans:
- From banks
Rupee term loan (Refer note A and C) 11,652,58 11,345.58 11,209.36
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (included in current (243.18) (290.07) (54.20)
borrowinas)
Less: Interest accrued (included in current borrowinas) = - (88.32)
11,409.40 11,055.51 11,066.84
Working capital term loan (Refer note B) 1,915.48 1,999.99 2,000.00
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (included in current (500.00) (84.51) (18.56)
borrowings)
1,415.48 1,915.48 1,981.44
Unsecured
Liability compenent of compound financial instruments
Unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures (Refer note D) 1,246.55 1,226.61 1,127.67
1,246.55 1,226.61 1,127.67
Total 14,071.43 14,197.60 14,175.95
Current
Secured
Waorking capital loan (Refer note E) 221.36 117.36 120.38
Unsecured
Inter corporate deposit from related party (Refer Note F) and (Refer note 40) 1,710.10 1,224.41 1,219.16
Current maturities of lona-term borrowinas* 743,18 374.58 161.08
Total 2,674.64 1,716.35 1,500.62

(a)

(b)

(<)

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost and therefore interest accrued on borrowings are included in the respective
amounts,

a) Nature of Security and Terms of repayment for secured borrowings

Term loan from Bank I

The lender has granted a term loan facility under the Common Facility Agreement dated 30 September 2019 to the Company and three co-borrowers i.e. Schloss
Chennai Private Limited, Schloss Chanakya Private Limited, Schloss Udaipur Private Limited, for a total amounting to Rs. 27,500.00 millions for the purpose of
acquisition (Rs. 25,500 millions) and refurbishment of the hotel property acquired (Rs. 2,000 millions) fully fungible amongst each of the three co- borrowers and
the Company's hotel property in Bangalore. The door to door tenure of the loan is 15 years including moratorium of one year. The loan is repayable in 56
quarterly structured installments beginning 31 December 2020. The loan carries interest rate linked to lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending
rate ("MCLR"), subject to annual reset, plus spread ranging from 0.80% to 1,60% based on the external credit rating. The Company has available facility of Rs.
38 millions (March 31, 2023 Rs. 960 millions and April 1, 2022 Rs. 960 millions) and rate of interest as on 31 March 2024 is 8.65 % p.a. (March 31, 2023 8.70 %
p.a and April 1, 2022 7.80% p.a.).

With the gradual drawdown of capax in the past three years the individual limits set for Schloss Chennai Private Limited and Schloss Udaipur Private Limited got
exhausted and an application to the lender was made for revision in the individual limits. However, due to the system limitation at the end of the lender, the
same cannot be revised and accordingly a cross utilisation of capex limit was done during the previous year. The Company has cross charged the interest
expense on such utilisation to respective entities,

Primary security:
The total term loan under the said agreement is secured against assets of the Company, other co-borrowers and obligators i.e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and
Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited under the Common Facility Agreement, interalia, including:

i. Exclusive charge on the total assets (including mortgage of property and / or mortgage of leasehold rights in case of leasehold property, if any) (present &
future).

ii. Exclusive charge on brand *Leela’ pertaining to Hotels, other intangibles, Goodwill, Intellectual Property (IP), uncalled capital (present and future);

iii. Exclusive charge on all bank accounts including but not limited to Escrow account (present & future).

iv. First charge on the total current assets (present and future).

v. Hypothecation of cash flows

Corporate guarantee:
i) of Schloss HMA Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary,
ii) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited, a fellow subsidiary.

Other security:

i) Pledge of 3?% shares of the Company held by the Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited, Holding company, in favour of security trustee for
the benefit of lenders for the entire term loan exposure.

ii) A guarantee of BSREP III India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited., Intermediate Holding company, situated at Dubai upto an amount of Rs. 3,000 millions,
enforceable at Dubai towards meeting the shortfall in debt service obligations from 31 March 2022,

iii) Mortgage on the land situated at Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited.




(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Modification in facility terms:
Lender on the request of the management has waived the requirement of testing of financial covenants till the end of FY 2022-23 with testing to be performed
on the audited balance sheet as at 31 March 2024 onwards.

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets i.e. stock statement, FFRs etc, filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement
with the books of accounts.

Loan covenants: Under the terms of the borrowing facilities, all the co-borrowers including the HMA entity are required to maintain the following covenants:
FACR 1.50, DSCR 1.11, ICR 1.59, Debt/EBITDA 6.74. The Company has met all the loan covenants during the year,

The lender has granted a Working capital term Loan (WCTL) Facility under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line 3.0 (GECL 3.0) facility of Rs. 2000 millions (March
31, 2023 Rs.2000 millions and April 1, 2022 Rs. 2000 millions) on 24 December, 2021 to the Company to augement net working capital, requirements to meet
operational liabilities. The door to door tenure of the loan is 6 years including moraterium of principal of two years. The loan is repayable in 48 quarterly
structured installments beginning January 2024. The loan carries interest rate linked to lender’s six months marginal cost of funds based lending rate ("MCLR"),
plus 1%, subject to annual reset.

Primary security:
Second charge on securities mentioned in A,1.(a) above,

Other security:

i} Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by the Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited, Holding company, in favour of security trustee for
the benefit of lenders for the entire term loan exposure.

ii) Extension of mortgage on the land situated at Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited.

Term loan IT

The lender had granted a term loan facility under Lease Rental Discounting (LRD) facility to the Company, amounting to Rs. 1,100.00 millions for the purpose of
acquisition of the Galleria office in Bangalore. The door to door tenure of the loan is 15 years from the date of first disbursement. The loan's repayable tenure is
180 monthly structured installments beginning December 2021. The loan carries interest rate linked to lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending
rate ("MCLR"), subject to monthly and annual reset, plus spread of 0.75%. The rate of interest as on March 31, 2024 is 9.4 % p.a. (March 31, 2023 9.15% p.2
and April 1, 2022 7.75 % p.a.).

Primary Security:

Exclusive first charge on hypothecation of existing and future rent receivables including lease rentals, parking rental, maintenance receivables and any other
receivables from existing tenants of the commercial building named "Galleria" from 1st floor to 7th floor, located at Sy. no. 94, 95, 96, HAL Stage - I1, Old airport
road, Kodihalli village, Varthur Hobli, now part of municipal no. 23/4, PID no. 74-49-23/4, situated at Kodihalli main road, 6th cross, Bangalore measuring
15,203.98 sg. ft.

Collateral Security:

(a) Exclusive first charge on the commercial building named "Galleria" from 1st floor to 7th floor, located at Sy. no. 94, 95, 96, HAL Stage - 11, Qld airport road,
Kodihalli village, Varthur Hobli, now part of municipal no. 23/4, PID no. 74-49-23/4, situated at Kodihalli main road, 6th cross, Bangalore admeasuring 15203.98
sq. ft. along with underlying land admeasuring 24,404 sq. mtrs.

(b) Assignment (by way of security interest) the right to use 305 car parking space.

(c) Exclusive charge as Lien on 3 months DSRA

(d) Exclusive charge on Escrow account

Unsecured compulscrily convertible debentures

The Company had issued 10.50% p.a. interest bearing 47,50,000 and 1,02,77,498 compulsory convertible debentures ("CCDs")to the holding company Project
Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, having face value of Rs. 100 each and term of 15 years during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022
respectively. These CCDs carries 10.50% p.a. coupon rate. The CCD holder shall be entitled to interest on the principal amount of CCDs outstanding at a rate of
10.50 % per annum compounded on a yearly basis, until conversion of the CCDs.

Conversion terms:

At the end of the tenure (15 years), each Compulsorily Convertible Debentures ("CCD") of face value of Rs 100 each will be converted into 1 equity share of face
value of Rs 10 each. CCD can be converted during the tenure of CCD at the option of the parties i.e. CCD heldars and the Company. Provided that the CCDs shall
automatically stand converted into equity shares upon:

(a) Commencement of the corporate insclvency resolution process of the Company or, any of the co-borrowers under the Common Facility Agreement dated 30
September 2019 executed with the lender; or

(b) Conversion of loan into equity of the Company or any or all of the co-barrowers under the Common Facility Agreement, unless otherwise instructed by the
lender as per the Common Facility Agreement who have provided the loans or who may have acceded to the financing documents.

Restriction on payment of interest on CCDs:
As per terms of the Common Facility Agreement referred at clause 5(A) above, interest on the CCDs shall be accrued but cannot be paid by the Company until all
the obligations under Common Facility Agreement are completed or seized.

The Company is liable to pay the interest portion on the CCD and at the end of the term of the CCD it will be converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1. The
interest and equity conversion as included in the CCD instrument requires it to be classified as compound financial instrument having an equity component for
conversion and liability component for cash outflows towards interest payments. Liability component is recorded as present value of cashoutflows towards
interest portion and the residual amount after deducting the liability component from the gross value of the instrument is recorded as equity component post
deferred tax adjustment (refer Note 15).

Madification in terms of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs): As per the original terms, the CCD holder was entitled to interest @ 10.50%. The
Company entered into addendum agreement dated 28 September, 2023 with the CCD halder for alteration of the CCD terms. As per the new terms, the CCD
holder shall be entitled to interest on principal amount at the rate of 10.50% p.a. till March 2029 and henceforth it will be 12.50% p.a. compounded on yearly
basis until conversion, Company accounted the modification as substantial modification and recognised the gain of Re. 96.38 million in equity.

Working capital loan

The lender has granted a working capital facility as per Agreement dated 11 August 2020 to the Company and three co-borrowers i.e. Schloss Chennai Private
Limited, Schloss Chanakya Private Limited, Schloss Udaipur Private Limited, for a total amounting to Rs. 500 millions (Previous Year 500.00 millions) to mest the
working capital requirement and it is repayable on demand. The loan carries interest rate linked to lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending rate
("MCLR"), subject to monthly reset. The rate of interest as on March 31, 2024 is 8.65 % p.a. (March 31, 2023 9.25 % p.a and April 1, 2022 7.95% p.a.).

Inter corporate deposit

The Company's fellow subsidiaries and other related party i.e Schloss Chennai Private Limited, Schloss Udaipur Private Limited and Schloss Chanakya Private
Limited have granted deposits to the Company, for a total of Rs 1,640.97 millions (Previous Year Rs 1099.99 millions) to meet working capital requirements and
it is repayable on demand. The rate of interest as on March 31, 2024 is 12,50% (March 31, 2023 12.50% p.a. and April 1, 2022 12.50% p.a.)
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This section sets out an analysis of net debt and movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

As at As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Borrowings 16,746.07 15,913,95 15,676.57
Lease liabilities 1,824.15 1,748.62 1,678.16
Cash and cash equivalents (97.94) (409.34) (503.78)
Total 18,472.28 17,254.23 16,850.95
Reconcilliation

Borrowings Lease liabilities Cash and cash Net
equivalents
Net debt as at April 1, 2022 15,676.57 1,678.15 503.78 16.850.94
Interest expense 1,378.09 170.62 - 1,548.71
New leases z 0.52 - 0.52
Cash flows 116.90 - (94.44) 211,34
Interest paid (1,257.61) (99.68) - (1,357.29)
Net debt as at March 31, 2023 15,913.95 1,749.61 409.34 17,254.22
Interest expense 1,528.65 177.95 = 1,706.60
New leases g # % =
Cash flows 863.74 - (311.40) 1,175,14
Gain on account of modification in the terms of compound financial - - (96.38)
(96.38)
instruments
Interest paid (1,463.89) (103.41) = (1.567.30)
Net debt as at March 31, 2024 16,746.07 1,824.15 97.94 18,472.28
Provisions
As at As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

April 1, 2022

Nan-Current

Provision for emplovee benefits:
- Compensated absences

- Gratuity

Total

Current

Provision for emplovee benefits:
- Compensated absences

- Gratuity

Total

Refer note 39 for details

6.80 3.81 3.02
21.63 19,14 24.68
28.43 22,95 27.69
0.76 0.43 0.31
7.82 3.85 0.58
8.58 4.28 0.89




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

19 Trade Payables (Rup in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Trade payables - micro and small enterprises (Refer 12.45 24,39 21.08
note below)
Trade payables - others 77.46 86.33 72.09
Trade payables - to related parties (Refer note 40) 179.77 56.87 11.99
Total 269.67 167.58 105.16
Ageing of trade payables
As at March 31, 2024
‘Outstanding for following periods from due dates
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3years Morethan3 Total
vears
Undisputed trade payables
Micra enterprises and small enterprises s - 12.45 - - = 1245
Others 38.46 < 217.55 1.21 - - 257.22
Disputed trade payables - - - - - - -
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - = = = =
Others - - = = 3 = %
Total 38.46 - 230.00 1.21 - - 269.67
As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due dates
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3years Morethan3 Total
vears
Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises andsmall enterprises = = 24.39 2 = = 24.39
Others 50.69 - 92.50 & . i 143.19
Disputed trade payables - & - - - - -
Micro enterprises andsmall enterprises - = 2 - = = =
Others = 4 = £ = o =
Total 50.69 - 116.89 = = = 167.58
As at April 1, 2022
O ding for following periods from due dates
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3vyears More than 3 Total
years
Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises andsmall enterprises - - 21.08 = = = 21.08
Others 10.47 - 73.41 0.20 - = 84.08
Disputed trade payables - - - - - - -
Micro enterprises andsmall enterprises & = - - - - -
Others = - = = = = =
Total 10.47 2 94.49 0.20 = = 105.16
Outstanding Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at vear end 1255 2439 21.08
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED
i - 0.00 0.00
Act and remaining unpaid as at vear end
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 67.79 0.56 1.0z
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED
Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, & - -
bevond the aboointed dav during the vear
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the # = o
appointed dav during the vear
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered
under MSMED Act, for payments already made E 0.00 0.01

Further interest remaining due and payable for earier
vears

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under
the definition of micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act.

20 Other financial liabilities (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Non-current
Security deposits 59.62 49.87 43.02
Total 59.62 49.87 43.02
Current
Security deposits = 6.36 18.27
Capital creditors 47,62 28.28 -
Employee dues payable 21.94 15.48 28,73
Others (payable towards business acquisition) - 1.08 1,08
Total 69.56 51.20 49.08
21 Other liabilities (Rup in Mitlion)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022

Non-current
Deferred income on fair valuation of security deposits 9.57 17.06 25.36
Total 9.57 17.06 25.36
Current
Contract Liability

Advance from customers 48.52 104.19 53.36

Deferred revenue 11.73 14.79 11.39
Deferred income on fair valuation of 4,92 7.58 6.83
Statutory dues payable,

Provident fund paya (( 3.54 275 1.90

Employee state ins A 4 0.21 0.16 0.10

Professional tax Central B Wing and 0.08 0.11 0.06

Tax deducted at d equblisalién ey payal 34.71 29.52 26.76
Total Nesco IT Parkd, 103.71 159.09 100.40

Nesco Center
Western Express Hghwe,
Goregaon if e} /
Mumbai - 400 16 /




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

22 Revenue from operations (Rupees in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Sale of products:
Food and beverages revenue 1,323.00 1,224.25
(b) Sale of services:
Room income 1,687.85 1,409.28
Other allied services (laundry income, health club 21357 185.71
income, auest transfers, membership etc.)
Total 3:224.42 2,819.23

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per contract price 3,224.42 2,819.23
Adjustments = -
Revenue from operations 3,224.42 2,819.23

Contract Balances

The contract liabilities primarily relates to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance
obligation is over/ services delivered. Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied.
This includes advances received from the customer towards rooms/ restaurant/ banquets. Revenue is recognized once the performance obligation is met
i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverage/ provision of banquet services/ other allied services.

It also includes membership fee received for food and beverage based memberships programme and disclosed as income received in advance.

The Company has recorded revenue of Rs. 118.98 millions and Rs. 64.75 millions against opening balance of contract liabilities for the year ended March
31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023 respectively.

Contract liabilities

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Advance from customers 48.52 104.19 53.36
Deferred revenue 11.73 14.79 11.39
Total contract liabilities 60.25 118.98 64.75
(i) Significant changes in contract liabilities
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contract liabilities

Opening balance 118.98 64.75
Addition during the year 60.25 118.98
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at th (118.98) (64.75)
Closing balance 60.25 118.98

The change in contract liabilities is on account of revenue recognised and advances received from customers during the period.

Timing of recognition

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At a point Over time At a point Over time
in time in time
Room revenue = 1,687.85 - 1,409.28
Revenue from foods and beverages 1,323.00 = 1,224.25 o
Other allied services (laundry income, health club incom: 178.19 = 152.46 =
Other allied services (membership fees) £ 35.38 = 33.25
1,501.19 1,723.23 1,376.71 1,442.52
23 Other income (Rupees in Million)
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Other income:
Interest income on financial assets recoanised at amortised cost:
- Deposits with banks 43.75 22,68
- Security deposits 0.22 0.19
- Others 0.89 0.89
Interest on Income Tax Refund 1.72 1.19
Income from rentals 216.79 227.51
Miscellaneous income (includes delivery charges, balance 24.33 18.24
287.75 270.70
(b) Other gains/(losses)
Net foreign exchange differences (0.38) 0.37
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7.95 2.40
Net gain/(loss) on de-recognition of financial liability (0.79) 0.70
6.78 3.47

294.53 274.17




24 Cost of food and beverages consumed (Rupees in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Food and beverages
Opening inventories 47.86 19.90
Add : Purchases (net) 290.11 271.01
Less : Inventories at the end of the year 71.62 47.86
Cost of food and beverages consumed during the year 266.35 243.04
25 Employee benefit expenses (Rupees in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus 457.45 370.68
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 39) 22.64 14.76
Staff welfare expenses 22.32 13.60
Gratuity (Refer note 39) 5.86 8.64
Compensated absences (Refer note 39) 3.32 0.91
Total 511.58 408.60

26 Finance costs

(Rupees in Million)

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Interest expense on:

- Rupee term loan 1,189.94 1,101.12
- Working capital term loan 14.84 10.14
- Liability component of compound financial instruments 139.90 120.48
- Inter corporate deposit 160.59 146,35
- Lease liabilities 177.85 170.62
- Security deposit 7.24 6.13
Total 1,690.47 1,554.84

(Rupees in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

27 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 181.03 217.89
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 54.74 54.47
Depreciation on investment property 5.22 5.20
Amortisation on intangible assets 8.05 8.65
Total 250.04 286.21
28 Other expenses (Rupees in Million)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Consumption of stores and operating supplies 70.90 69.18
Power and fuel 82.56 65.74
Rent charges 1101 8.71
Repairs and maintenance
- buildings 30.28 34.00
- plant and machinery 35.19 48.74
- others 38.10 36.34
Insurance 10.37 9.91
Communication 3.51 3.26
Travelling and conveyance 17.57 9.09
Guest transport 17.74 15.41
Printing and stationary 7.29 6.14
Sales and credit card commission 83,70 70.88
Business promotion 120.18 106.31
Management fees (Refer note 40) 221.64 192.89
Legal and professional fees 19.05 38.42
Payment to auditors (Refer note 29 below) 2.21 1.80
Rates and taxes 64.85 62.17
Loss allowance (3.42) (0.08)
Bank charaes 24.69 3.24
Miscellaneous expenses 71.62 71.06
Total 929.02 853.23
29 Details of payments to auditors (Rupees in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Payment to auditors

As auditor:

- Audit fee 2.10 1.80
- Qut of pocket expenses 0.11 =

- Other service fee = =
In other capacities:

- Taxation matters - =

- Company law matters - -

- Certification fees - =

- Reimbursement of expenses - =
Total

th Floor,
Central B Wing and
North C Wing
Nesco IT Paik4

Nesco Center
Nestern fagrear W
Grren




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

31 Taxation

31(a)

31(b)

A)

B)

Taxation for the year

This note provides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity (if any) and how the tax
expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the Company's tax

positions (if any).

(a) Income tax expense

(Rupees in Million)

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Current tax

Current tax on loss for the year
Current tax impact of earlier years
Total current tax expenses

Deferred tax for the year
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets
(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax impact of earlier years
Total deferred tax expenses/(income)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense attributable to :
Profit from operations

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Total

(b) Reconciliation of tax exp

and accounting profit multiplies by applicable tax rate

59.51
(59.51)

42.69
(42.69)

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Tax rate

Total

Loss from operations before income tax expense (128.51) (252.52)

25.168% 25.168%
Tax at applicable rate (32.34) (63.55)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / taxable in calculating taxable income :
Disallowance of interest on compulsorily convertible debenture 35.21 30.32
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised (2.87) 33.23
Taxation as at the year end
(a) Deferred tax asset/(liability) (net)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

As at As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

April 1, 2022

Deferred tax assets

Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss (Refer note below)

Provisions for employee benefits
Security deposits paid

Loss allowance

Deferred revenue

Lease liability

Deferred tax liability

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and

investment properties
Right of use of asset
Lease equalisation reserve
Non-current borrowings
Security depoists received

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

738.32 700.64 679.10
14.07 10.85 9.73
37.72 35.98 34.31

1.05 2.16 2.64
2,95 3.72 2.87
458.10 440.34 422.36
1,253.21 1,193.70 1,151.01

663.78 595.94 540.36

565.90 577.88 589.74
12,51 7.94 6.45
10.26 11.23 12,21

0.77 0.71 2.26
1,253.21 1,193.70 1,151.01

In the absence of reasonable certainty, Deferred tax asset on account of unabsorbed depreciation / business loss has been recognised to the

extent it can be realised against reversal of deferred tax liability.

(b) Tax losses

which no de| ag bPey, recoanised
Potential t 3%
Expiry da B Wing and

North C Wing.

Nesco IT Parkd,
Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)
Mumbai - 400 063

As at
March 31, 2024
699.12
175.96

April 1, 2024 to April 1,
2032

As at
March 31, 2023
673.02

169.39

2031

As at
April 1, 2022
537.79

135.35

April 1, 2023 to April 1, April 1, 2022 to April 1,
2030




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

31 Taxation (Cont.)
{c)Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets

t in Deferred tax for the period ended 31 March 2024

Accounted through
Balance ason 31 statement of profit Accounl:t)eglthrough Aocz:::f:‘::ir&ugh Balance as on 31
March 2023 & loss . 4 March 2024
charge/{credit] charge/(credit) charge/(credit)
Deferred tax assets 1,193.70 59.51 - - 1,253.21
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss 700.64 37.68 - - 738.32
Provisions for employee benefits 10.85 3.21 - - 14,07
Compulsarily convertible debentures liability component - - - - -
Security deposits paid 35,98 1.74 - = 37.72
Loss allowance 2.16 (1.11) - - 1.05
Deferred revenue 3.72 (0.77) - # 2.95
Lease liability 440.34 18.76 - - 459.10
Deferred tax liability 1,193.70 59,51 - - 1,253.21
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and 595.94 67.84 - - 663,78
investment properties
Right of use of asset 577.88 (11.98) - - 565.90
Lease equalisation reserve 7.94 4.57 = & 12.51
Mon-current borrowings 11.23 (0.98) - - 10.26
Security depoists received 0.71 0.06 - - 0.77
Total - - - - -
Movement in Deferred tax for the period ended 31 March 2023
Accounted through
Balanceasonl statement of profit Ac‘“"“t;g;hm“g"' A“g;‘::f::ﬂ;’;“gh Balance as on 31
April 2022 —— 8;'0[?“! dit) charge/(credit) charge/(credit) March 2023

Deferred tax assets 1,151.01 42,69 - - 1,193.70
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss 679.10 21.54 - - 700,64
Provisions for employee benefits 9.73 1.13 = - 10.85
Security deposits paid 34.31 1.67 - & 35.98
Loss allowance 2.64 (0.48) = = 2.16
Deferred revenue 2.87 0.86 = = 372
Lease liability 422.36 17.99 = - 440.34
Deferred tax liability 1,151.01 42.69 - - 1,193.70
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and 540.36 55.58 - - 595.94
investment properties
Right of use of asset 589.74 (11.86) - N 577.88
Lease equalisation reserve 6.45 1.49 = = 7.54
Non-current borrowings 12.21 (0.98) - - 11.23
Security depoists received 2.26 (1.54) - - 0.71

Total =
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

32 Fair Value Measurement

As at 31 March 2024

Financial instruments by category (Rupees in Million)
Carrying amount
FVTPL Amortised cost FvOCI Total
Financial assets
Trade receivables - 90.85 . 90.85
Cash and cash eguivalents - 97.94 - 97.94
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 616.28 - 616.28
Other financial assets - 317.68 - 317.68
Investments in equity instruments (Level 3) 0.19 - - 0.19
Total financial assets 0.19 1,122.75 = 1,122.94
Fi jal liabiti
Borrowings - 16,746,07 - 16,746.07
Trade payables - 269.67 - 269.67
Lease liabilties - 1,824.15 - 1,824,15
Other financial liabilities - 129.18 - 129.18
Total financial liabilities - 18,969.07 - 18,969.07
As at 31 March 2023
Financial instruments by category
Carrying amounts
FVTPL Amortised cost FVOCI Total
Einancial assets
Trade receivables - 126.39 - 126.39
Cash and cash equivalents - 409.34 - 409.34
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 134.32 - 134.32
Other financial assets - 146.81 - 146.81
Investments in equity instruments (Level 3) 0.19 - - 0.19
Total financial assets 0.19 816.86 = 817.05
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 15,913,95 - 15,913.95
Trade payables - 167.58 - 167.58
Lease liabilties - 1,749.62 - 1,748.62
Other financial liabilities - 101.07 - 101.07
Total financial liabilities - 17,932.22 - 17,932.22
As at April 1, 2022
Financial instruments by category
Carrying amount
FVTPL Amortised cost FVOCI Total
Financial assets
Trade receivables - 85.63 - 85.63
Cash and cash equivalents - 503.78 = 503.78
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 14.28 = 14.28
Other financial assets - 156.00 o 156.00
Investments in equity instruments (Level 3) 0.19 = N 0.18
0.19 759.69 - 759.88
Trade payables - 15,676.57 - 15,676.57
Lease liabilties - 105.16 = 105.16
Other financial liabilities - 1,678.15 = 1,678.15
- 92.10 - 92.10
Total financial liabilities 3 17,551.98 - 17,551.98

Ind AS 113, 'Fair Value Measurement’ requires dassification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured at fair value in the Statement of Balance sheet,
using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to un-adjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to un-observable inputs (Level 3 measurements),

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits with banks, current borrowings, trade payables, capital creditors, security
deposits, employee dues payable are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

Where such items are non-current in nature, the same has been dassified as Level 3 and fair value determined using discounted cash flow basis.

Investments in unquoted equity instruments where most recent information to measure fair value is insufficient, or if there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements, also the difference between the fair value and carrying value is not significant. Hence, carrying value has been considered as the best estimate of fair
value.

Further, the Company has valued compound financial instrument (both financial liability and equity component) at fair value on intial recognition. Financial liability
subsequently measured at amortised cost by adding unwinded interest. The inter-corporate deposit is having fair value equivalent to carrying amount as it is repayable
on demand and dassified as current financial liability.

The current lending rate and the rate used in determination of fair value at inception for security deposits, lease liabilities, non-current borrowings and compound
financial instruments are not significantly different. Accordingly, the fair value and carrying value for security deposits, lease liabilities, non-current berrowings and
compound financial instruments are same.

The fair-value-hierarchv under Ind AS 113 are described below:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and equity securities) is based on quated market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the dosing NAV. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the
current bid price. These instruments are induded in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation technig ’hmagg‘tige the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an insty ar&)b@’@bl 2 instrument is included in level 2.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024 (Cont..}

33 Financial Risk Manaaement
The Company's business activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The management develops and monitors the Company’s risk management policies. The key risks and mitigating actions are also placed before the Board of
directors of the Company. The Company's risk management policies ara established to identify and analyse the nsks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and to control and menitor risks and adherence to limits,

Finance team and experts of respective business divisions provides assurance that the Company's finandial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accardance with the Company’s palicies and risk objectives. The activities are designed to;

-protect the Company's financial results and position from financial risks

-maintain market risks within acceptatle parameters, while optimising returns; and

-protect the Company’s financial investments, while maximising retums.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity (s exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

A Credit Risk
Credit risk i the risk that a counterparty will not mest its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading ta a financial l0ss. Credit risk arises from trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balance, fixed deposits with
banks, security deposits and other financial assets,

The Company is expased to credit risk on its financial assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, trade recelvables, security deposits and other receivables, The exposure to credit risks arises from the potential failure of
counterparties to meet their otligations. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of the financial instruments.

with respect to other financial assets namely secuity deposits and other receivatles, the maximum exposure ta credit risk is the carmying amount of these classes of financial assets presented in the Balance Sheet. These are actively monitcred and
confirmed by the Company, Currently, the credit risk arising from such security deposits and other receivables is svaluated ta be immaterial for the Company.

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banks/financial institutions 1s generally low as the said deposils have been mada with the banks/financial institutions, who have been assigned high credit rating by international and
domestic rating agencies.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to aredit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer and the gecaraphy in which it operates, Credit risk is managed through credit approvals and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness
of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company operates only in one geographical location i.e, n India. Considering the industry in which the campany is operating, there is no major long
outstanding receivables.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade raceivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss exparience and adjusted for forwardiocking
information, The carrying amounts of trade receivables as disdosed in nate number 10 represent the maximum credit risk exposure,

The movement in loss allowance in respect of trade is a5 follows
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beaininna of the year 8.58 10.50
Imopairment losses (recoanised)/ reversed on receivables (3.42) 10.08Y
Amounts written off durina the vear (0,98) (1.84)
Balance at the end of the vear 417 8,58

Financial assets at FVTPL - The Company is also expased to credit risks in refation to financial assats (investment) that are measured at FYTPL The maximum exposure at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of thase assets,

B. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses, The Company’s ohiective is to, at all times maintzin optimum levels of liquidity to meet
its cash and collateral requirements. In addition, processes and policies related 1o such risks are overseen by senior management.

The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet |ts current requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing faclities, by continuously manitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Also refer note on going concern assessment {Refer Note 2.3). Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

(i) Financina arrangements
The Company had actess to the fullowing undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 1,
2024 2023 20;

Fixed interest rate ¥ o -

Floating interest rate 38.00 960.00 960.00

Total 38.00 960,00 960.00

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company’s financial liabilities based on thesr contractual payments. The amount disdesed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balance due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discouting is not significant.

Centractual maturities of financial liabilities

As at Carrying amount Less than 1 year Between 1 Between2-5 Over 5 years Total

March 31, 2024 - 2 vears vears

Barrowinas 16,746.07 3.809.83 151323 7.663.26 14,133.46 27.519.77
Lease liabilities 1.B24.15 107.85 113.24 374.85 13,782.18 14.378.12
Trade pavables 269.68 269.68 - - - 259.68
Other financial liabilites 129.18 69.56 14,25 62.93 - 146.74
Jotal financial liabilities 18,969,08 4,256.92 2.040.72 8,101.04 27.915.63 42,314,31
As at Carrying amount  Less than 1 year Between 1 Between2-5  Over 5 years Total

March 31, 2023 - 2 years years

Rarrawinas 1501345 778771 174055 RAIS.45 1A 704 A7 27 558 &0
Lease liabilities 1.749.62 103.03 108.23 357.00 13.913.27 14.481.59
Trade pavables 167.58 167.58 - - - 167.58
Other financial liabilites 10107 52.67 13.68 267 9LES 160.67
JTotal financial liabilities 17.932.22 3.111,01 86262 718512

As at Carrying amount  Less than 1 year Between 1 Between2-5  Over 5 years Total

April 1, 2022 - 2years years

Barrowings 15.676.57 2,613.61 1,370,02 8,561.61 16,346.88 28.892.11
Lease liabilities 1678.16 97.82 102.71 340.00 14.038.12 14,578.66
Trade pavatles 105.16 105.16 - - - 105.16
Other financial liabilities 92.10 49.08 13.68 1144 $2.88 157.08
Total financial liabilities 17,551.99 2,865.67 148641 §913.04 3046788 43,733,014
€. Market risk

(a) Foreian currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the nsk that the fair value or future cash flaws of a financial instrument will fluctuate bacause of changes i foreian currency rates. The Company makes payments intemationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from foreign currency purchases, primarily with respect to USD and GBP. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabiities denominated in a currency that s net the Company’s functional currency (Rs.) at the year end. The
Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk, expressed in Rs., is given in the tabie below. The amounts represent only the financial 2ssets and liabllities that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company.

i The foreian currency outstanding balances that have not been hedaed bv anv derivative instrument or otherwise are as follows:

As at March 31, 2024

Foreign Currency Foreign Currency Amount
i Amount ) (Rs, in millions)
Liabilities
Trade pavables EUR 373.52 0.03
Trade pavatles usD 54,861.93 457
Total exposure 4.61
Less: exposure hedaed (4.61)
Unhedged exposiure
As at March 31, 2023
Foreign Currency Foreign Currency Amount
inati Amount (Rs. in millions)
Liabilities
Trade pavatiles EUR 811.60 0.07
Trade pavables usp 34.372.27 283
Trade pavables 56D 2.027.56 012
Total exposure 3.02
Less: exposure hedaed (3.02)

Unhedaed exposiure

As at April 1, 2022
Foreign Currency Foreign Currency

Amount
Liabilities
Trade payatles EUR -
Trade pavables SD 52,734.40

Total exposure
Less: exposure N
Unhedged exposi
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The fllowing table presents the outstanding position and fair value of various foreign currency dsrivative financial instruments:
As at March 31, 2024

Currency pair Average Notional value Fair value
rate (Rs. in million}
Non-desianated
Buv USD/Rs. 8371 2065
Buy EUR/Rs. 91.09 0.12 -
Buy GBP/Rs. 105.75 046 x
Total
As at March 31, 2023
Currency pair Average Moticnal value Fair value
rate (Rs. in million)
Non-desianated
Buy USD/Rs. B2.79 18.74 >
Buv GBP/Rs. 102.70 3.08 -
Buy EUR/Rs. 90.69 .19 -
Total
As at April 1, 2022
Currency pair Average Noticnal value Fair value
rate (Rs. in million)
Non-desianated
Buy USD/Rs. 76.49 21.03 -
Buy EUR/Rs. B6.13 0.09 =
Buv GBP/Rs. 100.92 0.10 -
Sell USD/Rs. 76.49 2103 2
Sell EUR/Rs. B86.13 0.09 N
Sall GBP/Rs, 100.92 0.10
Total

i. Foreign exchange sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foraign currency denominated financial instruments, The table belcw shows the sensitivity of profit or loss to 3 1% change in foreign exchange rates,

Impact on Profit or Loss
For the Year ended  For the Year ended

March 31. 2024 March 31.2023
EUR sensitivity
Rs./ EUR - Increase by 1% (0.00) (0.001
Rs./ EUR - Decrease by 1% 0.00 0.00
USD sensitivity
Rs./ USD - Increase by 1% (0.05) (0.03)
Rs./ USD - Decrease by 1% 0.05 0.03
SGD sensitivity
Rs./ SGD - Increase by 1% - (0,00}
Rs./ 5GD - Decrease bv 1% - 0.00

) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will l2ad to changes in fair value of financial instruments or changes in interest income, expense and cash flows of the Company,
The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are induded in the table below. As at the end of the reporting periad, the Company had the following variable rate borrowings outstanding:

As at March 31, 2024

i average interest ns

Term loans. MCLR + spread of 0.75% to 1.6% 15.455.52 932
As at March 31, 2023

i average interest rate Balance Yo of

Term Loans MCLR =+ spread of 0.75% to 1.6% 14.687.34 92%
As at April 1, 2022

i average interest rate Balance Yo of total loans

Term Loans MCLR + spread of 0.75% to 1.6% 14.548.90 93%

An analysls by maturities is provided in note 33(b)(ii) above. The percentage of total loans shows the proportion of loans that are currently at variable rates In relation to the total amount of borrowings.

Cash flow sensitivitv analysis for variable rate instruments
Profit or loss is sensitive to hiaher lower interest exnense from bomowinas as a result of changes in interest rates.

As at As at

larch
Impact on profit Impact on profit
after tax after tax

Interest sensitivity
Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (155.00) (146.87)
Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points 155.00 146.87
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

34 Capital Management

The Company considers its total equity as shown in the balance sheet including share capital and retained earnings as the components
of its balance sheet of managed capital. The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

- Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, and

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor,
creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate
steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return on capital as well as the
level of dividends to shareholders. The Company's goal is to continue to be able to provide return to shareholders.

The gearing ratios were as follows:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Borrowings 16,746.07 15,913.95 15,676.57
Lease liabilities 1,824.15 1,749.62 1,678.16
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (97.94) (409.34) (503.78)
Less: Other Balance with bank (short term deposits) (616.28) (134.32) {14.28)
Net Debt 17,856.00 17,119.91 16,836.67
Total equity (248.87) (211.12) 39.20
Net debt to equity ratio (71.75) (81.09) 429.51

Loan covenants: Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the company is required to comply with the following financial
covenants as disclosed under note 17. The Company has complied with the applicable financial covenants.

35 Segment information

The Company is engaged in the business of hoteliering. The Board of Directors has appointed a strategic steering committee as Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") which assesses the financial performance and pesition of the Company, and makes strategic
decisions. The CODM of the Company examines the performance and make decisions for resource allocation. The CODM reviews these
activities as one single segment to evaluate the overall performance of the Company operations. Accordingly, the segment revenue,
segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets and segment liability is as reflected in the financial statements.

The Company provides services to customers in India. Hence, statement for geographical information is not applicable.

There are no key customers with company contributing more than 10% of entire revenue.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

36 Contingent liabilities (Rupees in Million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Claims inst the C y not ackr dged as debt, in respect of -

Disputed statutory liabilities (refer note below) 79,52 41.64 38.53
Total 79.52 41.64 38.53
Note:

The breakup of disputed statutory liabilities is as under:
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Department in appeals
Service tax* 79.52 40.36 3741
VAT# - 1.28 1.12
79.52 41.64 38.53

*Service tax department has raised demand on HLV Limited vide Show Cause Notice ("SCN") on account of disallowance:

(a) of CENVAT availed on debit notes raised by Leela Lace Holding Private Limited for service tax paid on lease rental under Voluntary Compliance Encouragement Scheme
("VCES") introduced by Ministry of Finance, Government of India to encourage payment of taxes on undisclosed income;

(b) on account of classification of in-room dining and mini bar under room accommodation (HLV Limited has paid service tax on in-room dining and mini bar service under
restaurant category (department has considered the said services under room accommodation category to levy tax) and

() of abatement daimed under rent-a-cab on account of input availment on car washing, maintenance etc.

Order to SCN was received in favour of HLV Limited. However, in departmental query the issue was raised again and the department has filed an appeal before CESTAT against
the order received in favour of HLV Limited.

# Deputy Commissioner of Commercial taxes has raised demand vide show cause notice (SCN) en account of following:

(a) Disallowance of input credit on account of non-filing of return by vendors along with interest.

(b) Dy. Commissioner also levied penalty for delay in making payment of taxes.

Subsequently the tax amount of Rs. 0.08 million has been paid by the company. The interest and penalty amount has been waived as per govt order number FD 49 CSL 2021
dated 29 March 2021. Thus the matter has achieved closure.

37 Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on account of purchase of property, plant and equipment and not provided for (net of capital advances) amounts to

Rs, 88.64 million (March 31, 2023 - Rs, 125,19 million and April 1, 2022 - Rs. Nil).

38 Earnings per share
The number of equity shares used in computing Basic Earnings Per Share is the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(Rupees in Million)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Basic earnings per share
Loss for the vear (A) (128.51) (252,52)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share (B) 3,51,97,064 3,51,97,064
Basic Earnings per equity share C=(A/B) in Rs. (3.65) (7.17)
Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company (A)

Used in calculating basic earning per share (128.51) (252.52})

Add: Finance cost saved on compulsorily convertible debentures 139.90 120.48
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating diluted earnings per share 11.39 (132.04)
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator (B)
Equity Shares 2,01,69,566 2,01,69,566
Equivalent shares of CCDs 1,50,27,498 1,50,27,498
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic earninas per share 3,51,97,064 3,51,97,064
Adiustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share - -
Weighted average number of equity shares used and potential equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 3,51,97,064 5 3,51,97,064
diluted earnings per share*
Diluted** Earnings per equity share C=(A/B) in Rs. (3.65) (7.17)

*Weighted average number of mandatorily convertible instruments (CCDs) included in the denominator in calculating basic earnings as per para 23 of Ind-AS 33.

**As the impact of the CCDs was anti-dilutive, resulting in a decrease in loss per share from continuing ordinary activities, the effect theraof has been ignored whilst calculating
diluted earnings per share.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (Cont..)

39 Employee Benefit Obligation
a) Compensated absences
Compensated absences covers the Company's liability for earned leaves. Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed are treated as employee
benefits. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment / availment. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected

cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitiement as at the period end.

The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) by an Independent actuary at the end of the period. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised
in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The expense of compensated absences (non-funded) for the year ended March 31, 2024 amounting to Rs. 3.32 millions (March 31, 2023; Rs. 0.91 millions) has been recognized in
the statement of profit and loss, based on actuarial valuation carried out using projected unit credit method.

b) Post employment obligations
Provident fund and Employees State Insurance Commission - Defined contribution plan

The Company makes provident fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable under these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount as an expense towards contribution to provident fund and employees state insurance
for the period aggregated to Rs. 22.64 millions (March 31, 2023: Rs, 14,76 millions)

Gratuity - Defined benefit plan

The Company aperates post-employment funded defined benefit plan that provides gratuity. The scheme provides for lumpsum payment to eligible employees on retirement, death
while in employment or on termination of employment, of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months
subject to a limit of Rs. 20 lakhs. The amounts in excess of the limit are to be borne by the Company as per palicy. Eligibility occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost are measured using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
balance sheet date.

Amounts recognised in the stats 1t of profit and loss: (Rupees in Million)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Defined contribution plans

- Employer's contribution te provident and other funds. 22.64 14.76
Total 22.64 14.76
Defined benefit plans

- Gratuity 5.86 8.64
Total 5.86 8.64

Amounts recognised in other comgrehensi\le income:

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Remeasurements for;

- Gratuity (5.62) 2.20
Total (5.62) 2.20
Gratuity plan
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligation 37.48 31.04 26.38
Fair value of plan assets 8.04 8.05 1.13
Net defined benefit obligation (29.45) (22.99) (25.25)
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations - - 8
Impact of minimum funding requirement/asset & 5 3
Net defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (29.45) (22.99) {25.25)
Net defined benefit liability is bifurcated as follows:

Current 7.82 3.85 0.58

Non-current 21,63 19.14 24.68

The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the period are as follows:

Present value of Fair value of plan assets Net amount
obligations

As at April 1, 2022 26.38 1.13 25.25
Current service cost 4.71 L 4.71
Interest expense/ (income) 192 = 1.92
Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 6.62 - 6.62
Remeasurements:

- Return on plan assets, exduding amounts induded in interest expense/ (income) - 0.32 (0.32)

- (Galn)/ loss from change in demographic assumptions n 7 =

- (Gain)/ loss from change in financial assumptions (0.41) - (0.41)

- Experience (gains)/ losses (1.55) - (1.55)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (1.96) 0.32 (2.28)
Employer contributions - 6.60 (6.60)
Benefit payments - - #
As at March 31, 2023 31.04 8.05 22,99
Current service cost 4.49 e 4.49
Interast expense/ (income) 2.29 - 2.29
Total r gnised in the of profit and loss 6.78 - 6.78
Remeasurements:

- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts induded in interest expense/ (income} - 0.30 (0.30)

- (Gain)/ loss from change in demagraphic assumptions (2.18) - (2.18)

- (Gain){ loss from change in financial assumptions 5.09 - 5.09

- Experience (gains)/ losses 241 - 2.41
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 5.32 0.30 5.02
Employer contributions - 5.35 (5.35)
Benefit payments (5.66) (5.66) -
As at March 31, 2024 37.48 8.04 29.45

& Lo,
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Actuarial assumptions were as follows:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 ril 1

Discount rate (p.a.) 7% 7.3%% 7.26%
Salary growth rate (p.a.) 8% 7.00% 7.00%
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability IALM(2012-14) TALM(2012-14) IALM{2012-14)
Attrition at Ages

= Up to 30 Years 30% 2.00% 2.00%

- From 31 to 44 years 25% 1.00% 1.00%

- Above 44 years 2% 1.00% 1.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in
the employment market.

Sensitivity analysis

Gratuity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to small changes in demographic assumptions. The key actuarial assumptions to which
the benefit obligation resuits are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The following table summarizes the change in defined benefit obligation
and impact in percentage terms compared with the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reparting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported
assumption by 50 basis points:

As at a
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 37.48 31.04
Impact due to increase of 0.50% (1.08) (1.65)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 1,14 1.81
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 37.48 3104
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 1.13 1.81
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (1.08) (1.66)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these not calculated. Sensitivities as rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate
of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are nat applicable.

The major categories of plans assets
The plans assets of the defined benefit plan are covered by the Campany into funds managed by insurer.

Maturity analysis
The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 1.08 years (previous year - 22.36 years)
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted post-employment defined benefit abligations is as follows:
(Rupees in Miliion)

Particulars Lessthara Between 1-2 years Between 2-5 years Over 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2024

- Gratuity 7.82 2.60 8.37 18.70 37.48
Total 7.82 2.60 8.37 18.70 37.48
As at March 31, 2023

- Gratuity 3.85 113 2,22 23.85 31.04
Total 3.85 1.13 2.22 23.85 31.04
As at 1 April 2022

- Gratuity 0.58 0.33 178 23.69 26.38
Total 0.58 0.33 1.78 23.69 26.38

Risk exposure:
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and the Company is exposed to the following risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future expected salaries of employees. As such, an increase in the salary
expected by more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.

‘Withdrawal risk: The risk that the usual timeframe for withdrawal requests is not met, or the withdrawals from the fund due to severe adverse market conditions are suspended.
Mortality risk: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024 (Cont...)

40 Related party transactions
A Name of related parties
i List of related parties where control exists and relationships

(i) Holding Company
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited, Holding Company

(ii) Fellow subsidiaries

Schloss HMA Private Limited

Schloss Chennai Private Limited

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited

Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited

Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Moonburg Power Private Limited (w.e.f 29th March 2023)
Schloss Tadoba Private Limited (w.e.f. 16th August 2022)
Summitt Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited

Arliga India Office Parks Private Limited

Arliga Ecoworld Infrastructure Private Limited

Cowrks India Private Limited

ii Key management personnel
Mr. Anuraag Bhatnagar, Director
Mr, Ravi Shankar, Director
Mr. Madhav Sehgal, Director and Area Vice President South
Mr. Subrat Sinha, Area Director of Finance South

C Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties (Rupees in Million)
For the year For the year
ended
March 31, caded
’

2024 March 31, 2023
Management fees expense
Schloss HMA Private Limited 221.64 192.89
Reimb of ex paid to / (received from)
Schloss Chennai Private Limited (1.35) 1.41
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited
Schloss HMA Private Limited 40.45 21.66
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited (0.16) (0.27)
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 0.39 (0.24)
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited (3.22) (155.58)
Arliga India Office Parks Private Limited (3.44) (0.77)
Arliga Ecoworld Infrastructure Private Limited 0.12 (2.46)
Cowrks India Private Limited 0.14 -
Other Income
Summitt Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited 0.61 0.86
Payment made towards consultancy services
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 9.68 6.22
Interest income on capex limit utilisation
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.15 0.04
Inter corporate deposit taken
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 40.00 €
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 605.00 -
Inter corporate deposit settlement
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 59.06 -
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 44.97 &
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited - 117.94
Interest on inter corporate deposit
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 85.96 87.50
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 47.60 50.00
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 27.19 9.29
Interest on unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 139.90 120.48
Managerial remuneration*
Short term employment benefits
Mr. Madhav Sehgal 15.14 13.27
Mr. Subrat Sinha 5.95 4,03

* Managerial remuneration excludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences, since these are provided on the basis of an actuarial




D  Outstanding balance
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:
As at

As at As at
March 31, :
March 31, 2024 2023 April 1, 2022
Trade payables (including accrued exp )
Schloss HMA Private Limited 172.48 54,96 13.38
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited - 0.30
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 0.34 1.64 0.10
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 0.80 0.28
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 6.57 = -
Cowrks India Private Limited* 0.00 - -
Capital creditors
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited - 0.18 -
Other receivable
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited = - 0.14
Trade receivable
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited & - 0.16
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.17 - -
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited 5 - 0.04
Summitt Digitel Infrastructure Private Limited 0.03 0.07 0.05
Arliga India Office Parks Private Limited = 0.12 1.29
Other advances
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited o 0.02 -
Receivable against reimbursements
Schloss HMA Private Limited = - 1.59
Inter corporate deposit taken
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 680.94 700.00 700.00
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 355.03 400.00 400.00
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 605.00 - 117.94
Interest on intercorporate deposit
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 2 26.61 79.18 0.43
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 18.06 45,25 0.25
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 24.47 - 0.55
Equity comp 1t of compound financial instruments
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 603.09 506.71 506.71
Financial liability component of unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 1,246,55 1,226.61 1,127.67

*Amount outstanding towards Cowrks India Private Limited is Rs 4,720

Corporate guarantee

Company's fellow subsidiaries i.e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited and the intermediate holding company
i.e. BSREP III India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited, have given corporate guarantee and fellow subsidiaries also created charge over their total
assets for the term loan and working capital facility availed by the Company.

Other Security

Company's fellow subsidiary i.e Leela Palace Resorts Limited and the intermediate holding company i.e the Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings
(DIFC) Private Limited have extended the mortgage on the land and pledged 30% shares of the Company respectively for the term loan
availed by the Company.

E Names of Related parties where control exists
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited (Holding Company), BSREP III India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited (Intermediate
Holding Company - from March 31 2022), and BSREP III India Ballet Pte, Ltd. (Intermediate Holding Company - upto March 30, 2022) and
Brookfield Corporation (Formerly known as Brookfield Asset Management Inc.) (Ultimate controlling party).

F Terms and conditions
All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable in cash. All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at
market rates.
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41 First time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS
These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, the comparative information presented
in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 1, 2022 (the Company’s date of
transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 and other relevant
provisions of the Act ("previous GAAP"). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes.

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101, as explained below. The resulting
difference between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at the transition date under Ind AS and IGAAP have been recognised directly
in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity). This note explains the adjustments made by the Company in restating its IGAAP financial statements,
including the Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2022 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023,

A.1 Ind AS optional exemptions
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

A.1.1. Fair value as deemed cost exemption
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to measure an item of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset at the date of transition to Ind ASs at its fair value
and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their fair value as on the transition date.

A.1.2 Business combinations
The Company has applied the exemption as provided in Ind AS 101 on non-application of Ind AS 103, "Business Combinations” to business combinations consummated prior
to April 1, 2022, pursuant to which goodwill arising from a business combination has been stated at the carrying amount prior to the date of transition under Previous GAAP.

A.1.3 Leases
An entity has to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease as per Ind AS 116. As a first time adopter, entity has an option te make this assessment on the
basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition as per Ind AS 101, The Company has elected to apply this exemption for such contracts/arrangements.

Under Ind AS 101 an entity can elect not to apply the requirement to create a right of use asset and lease liability as on the date of transition with respect to the leases for
which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of transition. The Company has opted to apply this practical exemption and has not recognized a right of use asset
and a corresponding lease liability in respect of leases where the lease term ends within 12 months from the date of transition.

In cases where the lease term ends beyond a period of 12 months from the date of transition, the Company has applied modified retrospective approach and measured its
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of transition to Ind AS. Further,
the right-to-use asset has been measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the Balance Sheet immediately before the date of transition to Ind AS.

A.1.4 Revenue form contract with customers

A first-time adopter is not required to restate contracts that were completed before the earliest period presented. A completed contract is a contract for which the entity has
transferred all of the goods or services identified in accordance with previous GAAP.

As a first time adopter of Ind AS, the Company has decided to use the above exemption.

A.2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions
The Company has applied the following exceptions from full retrospective application of Ind AS which are mandatorily required under Ind AS 101:

A.2.1 Estimates

The Company's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with
previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. Ind AS estimates as at
April 1, 2022 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP.

The Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under Previous GAAP:
- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model;
- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

A.2.2 Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind
AS. Consequently, the Company has applied the above assessment based on facts and circumstances existing at the transition date.

A.2.3 Impairment of financial assets

Application of the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively.

The Company has applied impairment requirements of Ind AS 9 retrospectively using reasonable and supportable information to determine the credit risk at the date when the
financial instruments were initially recognised, and to compare that to the credit risk at the date of transition to Ind AS standards. Requirements under Ind AS 109 for
impairment are applied against trade receivables.
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B: Reconciliations between IGAAP and Ind AS

The following reconciliations provide the explanation and qualification of the differences arising from the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS
101 “First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”.

(a) Reconciliation of total equity as at April 1, 2022 and March 31, 2023.

(b) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2023.

(c) Reconciliation of consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary to confirm with the financial statements prepared under Ind AS.

Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2023 and April 1, 2022 between previous GAAP and Ind AS

- As at As at
Particulars Note March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Total equity under previous GAAP (2,183.67) (1,743,31)
Ind AS adjustments:
- Equity component of compound financial instruments recorded separately 1 506.71 506.71
- Impact of finance cost on compound financial instrument 1 58.25 6.44
- Fair valuation of property, plant and equipment 2 1,270.04 1,270.04
- Depreciation on fair valued property, plant and equipment 2 (58.83) =
- Reversal of amortisation of goodwill 10 279.96 B
- Transaction cost on borrowings recorded as part of effective interest rate 3 44.62 48.50
- Fair valuation of security deposit given 4 (136.14) (136.33)
- Fair valuation of security deposit received 4 {3.29) 2,14
- Impact of loss allowance 13 (8.58) (10.50)
- Impact of deferred rental income booked 4 6.83 -
- Impact of right of use assets 6 1,606.35 1,645.08
- Impact of lease liabilities 6 (1,578.56) (1,538.17)
- Deferral of membership revenue 11 (14.79) (11.39)
Deferred tax impact on Ind AS adjustments - 2
Total equity under Ind AS (211.11) 39.20
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income as at March 31, 2023

" For the year ended
Particulars Note March 31, 2023
Loss after tax under previous GAAP (440.37)
Ind AS adjustments:
- Transaction cost on borrowinas recorded as part of effective interest rate 3 (3.87)
- Impact of finance cost on compound financial instrument 1 51.81
- Impact of finance cost unwinding on security deposit 4 (5.43)
- Impact of deferred rental income booked during the vear 4 6.83
- Impact of interest on lease liabilities 6 (170.60)
- Impact of lease rentals charaed to the statement of profit or loss now reversed 6 130.21
- Impact of reversal of amortisation of gooduwill 10 279.96
- Impact of depreciation cost on right of use of asset 6 (38.73)
- Interest income on security deposit 4 0.19
- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 5 (2.20)
- Impact of loss allowance 13 1.92
- Deferral of membership revenue 11 (3.40)
- Depreciation on fair valued property, plant and equipment 2 (58.83)
Deferred tax impact on adjustments 9 =
Total Adjustments 187.86
Profit after tax as per Ind AS (252.51)
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 5 2.20
Deferred tax impact on adjustments 5 =
Total comprehensive income under Ind AS (250.31)
Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023:
Particulars Previous 5

GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flows from operating activities 1,445.56 97.96 1,543.52
Net cash flows from investing activities (396.74) (1.35) (398.09)
Net cash flows from financing activities (1143.25) (96.62) (1239.87)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (94.43) -0.01 (94.44)

The adjustments are mainly due to leases considered under financing activity under Ind AS 116 whereas it was considered as operating activity under IGAAP.

C: Notes to first-time adoption:

1: Compound Financial Instrument

Under Ind AS on initial recognition, the issuer of a compound instrument first measures the liability component at its fair value. The equity component is measured as the
residual amount that results from deducting the fair value of the liability component from the initial carrying amount of the instrument as a whole. As a result of this
dassification guidance under Ind AS the compulsorily convertible debentures (CCDs) issued by the Company were earlier classified as borrowings under previous GAAP are
now classified as compound financial instruments resulting in decrease of borrowings by Rs. 506.71 millions with the corresponding increase in other equity as at April 1, 2022.
For the liability component valued at fair value initially, finance charge is booked aver the term of the CCDs at rate of similar financial instrument without the conversion option
(10.5%) and interest at coupon rate booked under previous GAAP would be derecognised resulted in decrease of retained earning at April 1, 2022 by Rs. 6.44 millions. For the
year ended March 31, 2023 net interest cost was charged on the liability component resulting in decrease in loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 by Rs. 51.81 million.

2: Fair valuation of property, plant and equipment

On the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all items of property, plant and equipment at fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost.
The aggregate impact of fair values of such property, plant and equipment has increased the total eguity by Rs. 1270.04 millions as at April 1, 2022. Consequently,
depreciation relating to the above differences in the cost of property, plant and equipment under Ind AS and previous GAAP has also been adjusted in the profit and loss
statement for March 2023 of Rs. 58.83 million.
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3: Impact of transaction cost on borrowings to be recognised over loan term
Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards crigination of borrowings to be deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the tenure of the borrowings as a part of the interest expense by applying the effective interest rate method.

Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged to the statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Accordingly, borrowings as at March 31, 2023 were
reduced by Rs. 44.62 millions (April 1, 2022 - Rs. 48.50 millions) with the corresponding adjustment to retained earnings. The total equity increased by an equivalent amount.
Under Ind AS, finance cost of Rs. 3.87 millions has been charged to statement of profit and loss for amortisation of such transaction cost during the year ended 31 March
2023,

4: Fair valuation of security deposit assets and liabilities
Under Previous GAAP, security deposit assets and liabilities (that are refundable in cash on completion of the lease term) were recognised at their transaction value. Under Ind
AS, all the interest free financial assets and liabilities to be recognised at the fair value. Accordingly, the Company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS.

Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the deposits has been recoginised as right of use assets in case of security deposits given. Consequent to this
change, the amount of security deposits given decreased by Rs. 136.14 millions as at March 31, 2023 (April 1, 2022 - Rs. 136.33) with the corresponding impact to right of
use assets. The loss for the year as at March 31, 2023 increased by Rs. 38.73 millions due to amortisation of right of use assets which is partially off set by the notional
interest income of Rs. 0.19 millions recognised on security deposits given with the corresponding impact in total equity.

Further, difference between the fair value and transaction value of the deposits received has been recoginised as deferred income. Censequent to this change, the amount of
security deposits received decreased by Rs. 3.29 millions as at March 31, 2023 (April 1, 2022 increased by Rs. 2.14 millions) with the corresponding impact te deferred income.
The loss for the year as at March 31, 2023 reduced by Rs. 6.83 millions due to recognition of rental income and gain on de recognition of financial liability of Rs. 0.70 millions
which is partially off set by the notional interest expense of Rs. 6.13 millions recognised on security deposits received with the corresponding impact in total equity.

5: Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts already included in the previous GAAP, these remeasurements
were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this change, the loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 decreased by Rs. 2.20 millions with corresponding
decrease in other comprehensive income. There is no impact on the total equity as at March 31, 2023 and as at April 01, 2022.

6: Recognition of right of use assets and lease liability

As per Ind-AS 116, the Company recognised a lease liability and right-of-use asset for all contracts that are or contain a lease unless the lease contract pertain to short-term
leases or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted using the
lessee's incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2022, Further, the right-to-use asset has been measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the Balance Sheet immediately before the date of transition to Ind AS. The weighted average
lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as on 1 April 2022 was 10.50%.

The Company has recognised a lease liability of Rs. 1538.17 millions and right-of-use assets of Rs. 1645.08 millions (after adjusting the pre-existing lease liabilities in respect
of leases where the company is a lessee) as at the transition date.

The loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 was impacted due to an increase in depreciation cost of Rs. 38.73 million and increase in interest cost on lease liability of Rs.
170,60 millions offset by reversal in lease rentals of Rs. 130.21 millions. The impact as ot March 31, 2023 of lease liability of Rs 1578.56 millions and right-of-use assets of Rs
1606.35 millions.

7: Recognition of investment Property
Under the previous GAAP, investment properties were presented as a part of property, plant and equipment. Under Ind AS, investment properties are required to be
separately presented on the face of the Balance sheet. There is no impact on the total equity or loss as a result of this adjustment.

8: Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise.
Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 'other comprehensive income’ indudes
remeasurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under IGAAP.

9: Deferred tax on adjustments

Under previous GAAP, deferred tax accounting was done using the income statement approach, which focused on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits
for the period whereas in Ind AS 12 balance sheet approach required to be followed, which focuses on temporary differences between carrying amount of an asset or liability
in the balance sheet and its tax base. This resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required in previous GAAP.

However, the Company has recognised deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences to the extent that there are sufficient suitable deferred tax liabilities available
resultina into non recoanition of deferred tax impact on Ind AS transition.

10: Amortisation of Goodwill

Goodwill is recognised at net carrying amaunt as per the previous GAAP as on the transition date. Under previous GAAP, the goodwill was amortised over the period whereas
under Ind AS the goodwill is not amortised but tested for impairment. Accordingly, the amortisation of goodwill for the year ended March 31, 2023 was reversed to arrive at
the net carrying amount as on transition date resulting into decrease in loss for the year by Rs. 279.96 millions with corresponding impact on retained earnings.

11: Revenue from operations

The Company has recorded income on the basis of satisfaction of performance obligation, accordingly the unsatisfied performance obligation related to membership revenue is
recognised as deferred revenue with corresponding decrease of retained earnings by Rs. 11.39 millions as on the transition date, The impact of this for the year ended March
31, 2023 was Rs. 3.40 millions resulted in increase in loss for the year.

12: Expected credit loss

As on the transition date, the Company has applied expected credit loss on trade receivables using the simplified approach as suggested under Ind AS 109. As a result of this,
the retained earnings were reduced by Rs. 10.50 millions with the corresponding decrease in the amount of trade receivables. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the
impact of expected credit loss resulted in reversal provision by reducing the loss by Rs. 1.92 millions.

13: Retained earnings
Retained earnings as at April 1, 2022 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.
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42 Ratio Analysis and its elements

31st March

Return on Investment

Interest (Finance Income)

Investment

Ratio Analysis Numerator Denominator 2024 31st March 2023 % Change Remarks
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.41 0.48 -14%
Debt Equity Ratio Non - Current Borrowings + Total Equity (67.29)] (75.38) 11%
Current Borrowinas

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Profit before Tax + Interest (Net) | Interest (Net) + Lease Payments + 0.91 111 -17%]
+ Depreciation and amortisation | Principal Repayment of long-term
expenses Debt

Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit after taxes Average Total Equity 0.56 2.94 -81%|Decrease in return on equity is primarily on|
account of business losses for the consecutive|
two vears

Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory 2.89 333 -13%

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Averaqe Trade Receivables 29,69 26.59 12%

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Net Purchases Average Trade Payables 1.33 1.99 33%)| Decrease is mainly due to increase in average|
trade payables during the year. The average
trade payables in the previous year was low|
because of significantly lower opening trade|
nauables

Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Average Working Capital i.e. (2.79) (3.60) 22%

Average Current Assets - Average
Current Liabilities

Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after tax Net Sales (0.04) (0.09) 56%|Increase in Net profit ratio is primarily on|
account of higher average room rate and
average per cover resulting in increased|
marains.

Return on Capital employed EBIT Capital Employed 0.05 0.04 16%

Not applicable
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43 Other Statutory Information
{1} The Company neither have any Benami property, nor any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Cempany does not have any transactions with companies struck off ufs 243 of the Companies Act, 2013 or u/s 560 of Companies Act, 2013.

(iii} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be reaistered with Registrar Of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has net traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the finandal year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds in any other person(s) or entity(ies), indluding foreign entities ({Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons o entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsosver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultmate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies.

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or
(vil) Survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.)

(viii) The Company has investment property as disclosed in fair value and accordingly its fair valuation is at year end is disclosed in note 6
(1x) No revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment (Including ROU) & Intangible assets has been carried out during the year,
(x) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of leans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:
(@) repayable on demand; or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
(i) The Company has nat defaulted on loan from any bank or financial Institution r other lender.

(xii) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) on the basis of security of current assets - Not Applicable.

(xiii) The Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution as defined under companies act, 2013 or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on the wilful defaulters issued by the RBI.

(xiv) The Company has complied with number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with Companies (restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.
(xv) The Company has used the borrowings from bank for specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.
(xvi) Compliance with approved scheme of arrangements.

44 Subsequent events to be updated based on the details of SPA
Schiess Bangalore Private Limited has entered into a share purchase agreement dated May 31, 2024 for purchase of 100% (one hundred percent) of the issued and paid up equity share capital of Schioss Chanakya Private Limited, Schloss
Chennai Private Limited, Schloss HMA Private Limited, Schloss Tadoba Private Limited, Schioss Gandhinagar Private Limited and Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited from it's shareholder's on such terms and conditions as prescribed therein.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the board of directors of S
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited \(\
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